
1 | P a g e  
 

Alexandria Transit Company 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Wednesday, March 11th, 2020 | 5:30 p.m. 
DASH Board Room, 3000 Business Center Drive 

Meeting Agenda 
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION PAGE # PRESENTER 

Pre-
Meeting 

DASH Facility Infrastructure Tour and Discussion  
(Information Only) 
The General Manager will provide a briefing on the condition of the 
DASH Facility, Major Projects, and provide a brief tour of the Facility 
highlighting areas where major work is planned or required. 

N/A J. Baker 

#1 Public Comment (Begins at approximately 6:00pm) N/A All 

#2 Consideration of Meeting Minutes Approval 
a) February 12th, 2020 2-4 All 

#3 Board Member Announcements & Presentations 
a) Chairman’s Report (+ Appointment of Nominating Committee) 
b) T&ES Directors Report 
c) Any Others 

N/A 
D. Kaplan 

Y. Lambert  
All 

#4 General Manager’s Report   
a) Management Report 
b) Performance Report 
c) Operating Report 
d) GM’s Summary Report 

5-12 J. Baker 

#5 Financial Report 
a) December Financial Update 
b) December Balance Sheet 
c) December Summary Income Statement  
d) December Budget vs. Actual (BVA) 

13-16 E. Davis 

#6 New Business 
a) Coronavirus (COVID-19) DASH Strategy Briefing 
b) Presentation of FY21 Draft ATC Transit Development Plan  
c) Presentation of FY21 Final Proposed ATC Operating Budget 
d) ATC Board Candidate Recruitment Process Briefing/Discussion 

17-22 
 S. Salzone 

M. Barna 
E. Davis 
J. Baker 

#7 Executive Session 
Consideration of Convening an Executive Session for the Purpose of 
Discussing Legal and Personnel Matters, pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 
(A1) of the Code of Virginia 

23 All 

#8 Next Meeting Date & Adjournment 
The next regular meeting is Wednesday, April 8, 2020 at 5:30pm 
at the Alexandria City Hall, Council Workroom, 2nd, Floor. 24 All 



2 | P a g e  
 

ATC Board Agenda Detail 
Agenda Item #: 2 
Item Title:  Meeting Minutes 
Contact:  Joseph Quansah, Office Manager 
Attachments:   None 
Customer Impact: None 
Board Action:  Consideration of Approval 

 
 

Alexandria Transit Company (ATC) 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 12, 2020 
 

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Alexandria Transit Company was held on Wednesday, February 12th, 
2020 at the Alexandria City Hall Council Workroom, 2nd Floor, 301 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314. 
 
Board Members Present: David Kaplan, Kerry Donley, Matt Harris, Ian Greaves, Steve Klejst, Yon Lambert, 

Richard Lawrence, Jim Kapsis, Jeffrey Bennett, and Lawrence Chambers.  
Board Members Absent:  N/A 
 
Staff Members Attending: Raymond Mui, Martin Barna, Evan Davis, Joseph Quansah, Alicia Wright, Jordan 

Lew, Bill Eger 
 
Signed-In Guests Present: Steve Clermont, Joe Empert, Steve Banashek, John Andrews, Elizabeth Bennett-

Parker 
 
Board Meeting 
The Chairman called the meeting to order at 5:30pm. 
 
Agenda Item Pre-Meeting – The Board Chairman thanked all for coming and introduced the two new 
members Lawrence Chambers and Jeffrey Bennett. He then informed the Board that General Manager Josh Baker 
is unable to attend due to illness, however Assistant General Manager Raymond Mui is present in his absence. 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Public Comment  

o There were no public speakers.  
 
Agenda Item #2 – Consideration of Meeting Minutes Approval 
Approval of Minutes: 

• A Motion by Kerry Donley and Seconded by Matt Harris was made to approve the minutes of the prior 
meeting. 
o The motion carried unanimously. 

 
Agenda Item #3 – Reports, Updates and Other Business Item  
#3a – Chairman’s Report  

• Chairman thanked all those who attended the stockholders’ meeting. 
• He also announced the departure of Fatima from the company and wished her well. He informed the 

board that Joseph Quansah will be filling in until that position is filled. 
• The Chairman summarized the ATC Stockholders Meeting noting specifically that there is a concern 

about the composition of the Board, and an opportunity to improve representation and ensure an 
appropriate gender balance. This generated several questions pertaining to the timing of the next 
posting, the process, and method of applying. Mr. Jim Kapsis provided feedback that there is a 
responsibly of the members of the current Board to help recruit as a part of this process. Further he 
recommends the posting of the position go out earlier than later. As he was absent from the meeting 
where members were appointed, and he was surprised as to the decision to proceed without going back 
out to seek additional women representation. Mr. Bennett recommended recruiting from COMTO 
(Conference of Minority Transportation Officials) and WTS (Women in Transportation Seminar). Mr. 
Donley noted that recruitment from the Alexandria Chamber of Commerce would be helpful as well, 



3 | P a g e  
 

having a woman business owner would be a great service to the Board.  
• A brief discussion ensued with further clarifications being provided and multiple ideas shared as to 

groups, associations and whom to contact and recruit for the next round. 
• At the next meeting an orientation for the two new Board Members will take place with the Chairman 

and General Manager prior to the next Board Meeting. 
• Prior to regular business, the next DASH Board Meeting will include a facility tour. 

 
Item #3b –T&ES Directors Report  
Yon Lambert provided a high-level review of his previously submitted written report; he noted that new Board 
Members will receive his report on future dates. 

• Groundbreaking of the Potomac Yard Metro project. 
• A pilot program that was initiated at the city’s request will affect pedestrianizing the 100 Block of King 

Street in the summer on weekends. An update to council is anticipated in the coming months. 
• Summary and updates regarding the WMATA Bus Transformation Project. 
• The WMATA budget proposal includes some minor impacts on DASH, nothing huge is proposed that has 

major impacts that we can see. 
• A brief discussion ensued related to times when the King Street Trolley service is modified or 

supplemented with other DASH buses. 
 
Staff Reports 
Agenda Item #4 – General Manager’s Report 
The General Manager’s report was made available in advance with the ATC Board Packet which included 
Management, Performance, Operating, and a Summary report. 
 
Agenda Item #5 - Financial Report  
The Director of Finance and Administration provided a brief review of his written report, which was shared with 
the board in advance, sharing with the board the significant variances and notable accounts in December.  

• He noted that December showed a deficit due to costs related to the AT1 and AT9 enhancements which 
have not yet been moved to the associated grants. He further noted DASH has been able to make 
investments both in handheld radios in operations and office space as we brought in new employees. 

• Noting variance in postage and office supplies is related to a roll-up from Bus Stop signs/displays. 
• He also estimated that DASH expects to save over $122,000.00 in FY 2020 following the investments in 

State of Good Repair and Equipment. 
 
Agenda Item #6a – DASH Electric Bus Program Presentation 
DASH AGM, Raymond Mui introduced Bill Eger (Energy Manager for the City of Alexandria). Joe Empert and Steve 
Clermont of the Center for Transportation and the Environment (CTE) were also present to review a presentation 
and synopsis of DASH’s Electric Bus Program.  
The PowerPoint and materials were made available to members in print in advance.  
The following were some of the highlights, content of the presentation is available in the February Board Packet. 
 
Agenda Item #6b – Consideration of a Resolution for Grant Application for enhancements to DASH     
Real-Time Bus Predictions System 
 

• Martin Barna presented for consideration a Resolution for Grant Application for enhancing the DASH Real-
Time Bus Prediction System. This project seeks to improve data accuracy. Chairman Kaplan inquired as to 
how we will determine if the system is accurate. Mr. Barna answered that we have plans to collect 
vehicular and traffic data to see how accurate it is currently and will be following this project. 

• Mr. Barna also noted that DASH has a Focus Group for this project and requested that any Board 
Members familiar with any individuals who would be interested be shared with him.  

  
A Motion was offered by Kerry Donley and Seconded by Jim Kapsis to approve the resolution. 

o The motion carried unanimously. 
 
  



4 | P a g e  
 

Agenda Item #7 – Next Meeting Date & Adjournment  
At this juncture a motion was made to enter Executive Session for the Purpose of Discussing Legal and Personnel 
Matters, pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A1) of the Code of Virginia. 

• Motion to enter Executive Session was made by Kerry Donley and seconded by Richard Lawrence. The 
Motion was carried unanimously. 
 

• Upon conclusion of the session, a motion to exit executive session by Kerry Donley and seconded by 
Richard Lawrence. The Motion was carried unanimously. 
 

• A motion to certify that the items discussed in Executive Session were in compliance with Section 2.2-
3711 (A1) of the Code of Virginia was offered by Kerry Donley and seconded by Richard Lawrence. 
 

• Motion to adjourn the meeting by Kerry Donley and seconded by Richard Lawrence. The motion was 
carried unanimously. 

 
The next regular monthly meeting of the Alexandria Transit Company Board of Directors is March 11th, 2020 at 
5:30 pm at the DASH Boardroom, @ 3000 Business Center Drive. 
 
  



5 | P a g e  
 

ATC Board Agenda Detail 
Agenda Item #: 4 
Item Title:  DASH General Manager’s Report  
Contact:  Josh Baker, General Manager  
Attachments:   None 
Customer Impact: None 
Board Action:  None/FYI  
  
4a Summary: Management Report  

 
MANAGEMENT REPORT 

January 2020  
A. RIDERSHIP:   

Total system ridership for the month increased by 9.8% from last January, with 287,792 
total passengers.  Without the King Street Trolley, total ridership increased by 9.4% from 
last January, with 248,635 passengers.  
 

   
 

B. SAFETY:  DASH experienced three NTD reportable accidents during the month of 
December. 

 
1/07 – Bus made contact with a light pole at Van Dorn Metro Station. (Preventable) 
 
1/23 – Shuttle bus made contact with bus at King and Royal Streets. (Non-
Preventable) 
 
1/27 – Vehicle made contact with bus at Duke and Jordan Streets (Non-Preventable) 

 
 
C. SPECIAL EVENTS 
         None. 

Weekday Saturday Sunday
2018 9,850 2,610 1,835
2019 10,622 2,958 2,695
% Change 7.8% 13.4% 46.9%

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Bo
ar

di
ng

s

January Total Average Daily 
Boardings 

(Excluding Trolley)

Weekday Saturday Sunday
2018 1,068 1,408 1,069
2019 1,107 1,576 1,162
% Change 3.7% 11.9% 8.7%

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800
Bo

ar
di

gs

January KST - Average Daily 
Boardings  



6 | P a g e  
 

4b Summary: Performance Report  
(System-Wide Ridership) 

 

  

July August September October November December January February March April May June Metrorail*
FY 2017 348,122 371,835 348,970 350,114 313,472 291,037 280,540 280,794 324,205 330,559 345,453 364,610 340,820
FY 2018 325,942 357,728 343,427 351,203 303,908 278,813 273,943 267,675 310,961 341,527 360,382 357,979 290,400
FY 2019 346,394 353,415 322,539 365,467 289,396 271,346 262,046 258,820 313,090 334,752 339,569 308,225 296,940
FY 2020 308,774 299,515 315,275 344,003 296,899 282,688 287,792

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

To
ta

l M
on

th
ly

 R
id

er
s

DASH Monthly Systemwide Ridership (FY2017-FY2020)

*
* *

Av
g.

 A
nn

ua
lB

oa
rd

in
gs

 a
t4

 M
et

ro
ra

il 
St

at
io

ns

* Major Service Disruption Event 
(Safetrack, Govt Shutdown, etc)

* *
* ** *



7 | P a g e  
 

4b Summary: Performance Report  
(Free Student Rides Program Ridership) 
 

  

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 1,600

September October November December January February March April May June

Av
er

ag
e 

W
ee

kd
ay

 B
oa

rd
in

gs

Average Weekday "Free Student Rides" Program Boardings (FY2017-2020)

2017-2018 (TCWHS Only) 2018-2019 (TCWHS, BIHS, EHS, SSSAS) 2019-2020 (TCW, BIHS, EHS, SSSAS, Fusion)



8 | P a g e  
 

4b Summary: Performance Report  
(DOT Program Boarding by Month)  
 
 
  

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

DASH DOT/MetroAccess Boardings by Month

FY18 FY19 FY20



9 | P a g e  
 

4b Summary: Performance Report  
(Mobile App Boarding’s/Performance)  
 
 

 

 

965

1,837

2,494

3,251

5,040 4,935

5,223

4,505

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

June July August September October November December January

DASH Bus App Boardings by Month (2019-2020)

WMATA Platform Improvement Project

End of $1 Fare 
Discount



10 | P a g e  
 

4b Summary: Performance Report  
(Quarterly Ridership Detail Report)  

 

 
 

Route FY17 FY18* FY19 FY20
% Change           
(FY19-20)

% Change           
(FY17-20)

Trend          
(FY17-20)

AT-1 1,509 1,573 1,578 1,733 9.8% 14.8%
AT-2 1,425 1,425 1,409 1,291 -8.4% -9.4%
AT-3 712 659 648 656 1.1% -8.0%
AT-4 585 524 513 536 4.6% -8.4%
AT-5 1,290 1,300 1,354 1,181 -12.8% -8.5%
AT-6 742 711 800 617 -22.8% -16.8%
AT-7 586 571 635 576 -9.4% -1.7%
AT-8 2,715 2,570 2,750 2,256 -17.9% -16.9%
AT-9 402 445 500 650 30.2% 61.9%
AT-10 524 469 410 391 -4.6% -25.3%
AT-3/4 48 47 57 41 -28.6% -15.3%
AT-2X 176 148 107 135 25.7% -23.3%

KST 2,501 2,352 1,993 1,931 -3.1% -22.8%
TOTAL 13,216 12,793 12,753 11,994 -6.0% -9.2%

TOT (NO KST) 10,715 10,441 10,760 10,063 -6.5% -6.1%

Route FY17 FY18* FY19 FY20
% Change           
(FY19-20)

% Change           
(FY17-20)

Trend          
(FY17-20)

AT-1 882 871 911 886 -2.7% 0.5%
AT-2 416 405 404 407 0.6% -2.2%
AT-5 946 844 863 789 -8.6% -16.7%
AT-8 1,254 1,188 1,135 1,125 -0.8% -10.2%
AT-9 165 186 201 295 46.9% 78.6%
AT-10 294 298 299 269 -9.9% -8.6%
AT-3/4 57 53 51 56 9.7% -2.0%

KST 3,802 3,876 3,346 3,456 3.3% -9.1%
TOTAL 7,816 7,722 7,209 7,283 1.0% -6.8%

TOT (NO KST) 4,014 3,846 3,863 3,826 -0.9% -4.7%

Route FY17 FY18* FY19 FY20
% Change           
(FY19-20)

% Change           
(FY17-20)

Trend          
(FY17-20)

AT-1 458 399 486 561 15.6% 22.7%
AT-2 372 400 423 366 -13.6% -1.7%
AT-5 401 363 344 335 -2.7% -16.5%
AT-8 859 816 811 771 -4.9% -10.3%
AT-9 0 0 0 258 - -
AT-10 149 122 130 127 -2.8% -15.1%
AT-3/4 54 49 48 50 3.9% -7.7%

KST 2,499 2,899 2,261 2,278 0.7% -8.8%
TOTAL 4,791 5,048 4,502 4,745 5.4% -1.0%

TOT (NO KST) 2,292 2,149 2,242 2,467 10.1% 7.6%

Note:   FY18 data shown above is lower than actual ridership numbers by 2-4 percent due to farebox
              configuration error that resulted in underreported ridership data from March - July 2017.

DASH YEAR-TO-DATE RIDERSHIP TRENDS - (FY2017-FY2020)
Average Daily WEEKDAY Boardings (Q2 FYTD)

Average Daily SATURDAY Boardings (Q2 FYTD)

Average Daily SUNDAY Boardings (Q2 FYTD)



11 | P a g e  
 

4c Summary: Operating Report  
(Operating Report: December 2019 
 

DASH OPERATING REPORT (JANUARY 2020) 

  
PREVIOUS YEAR 
(JANUARY 2019) 

CURRENT YEAR 
(JANUARY 2020) 

PERCENT 
CHANGE 

RIDERSHIP       
Total Monthly Passengers 262,046 287,792 9.8% 
Total Monthly Passengers (Excluding Trolley) 227,324 248,635 9.4% 
Passengers / Revenue Mile  1.7 1.6 -4.9% 
Passengers / Revenue Hour  18.9 18.1 -4.1% 
        

SERVICE LEVELS       
Total Miles  170,607 197,310 15.7% 
Revenue Miles  154,639 178,500 15.4% 
        

SAFETY       
NTD Reportable Accidents - Total  1 3 200.0% 
NTD Reportable Accidents - Preventable  0 1 - 

        

FARES       
Average Fare $1.16 $1.29 11.3% 
ATC DASH Pass  20,420 18,062 -11.5% 
"Free Student Rides" Program 25,708 31,231 21.5% 
Regional Bus Transfers  14,789 15,703 6.2% 
Rail-Bus Transfers  28,948 29,933 3.4% 
% Paid by Smarttrip 81.5% 75.9% -5.6% 
        

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE*       
Operating Expense / Total Mile $10.01  $9.28  -7.3% 
Operating Expense / Total Platform Hour  $102.00  $86.98  -14.7% 
Total Revenue / Operating Expense Ratio 23.5% 26.9% 3.4% 

    
SERVICE RELIABILITY January 2019 January 2020 % Change  
On-Time Performance 88.8% 89.9% 1.1% 
Missed Trip Percent  0.05% 0.02% -0.02% 
Avg. Miles Per Road Call  18,956 24,664 30.1% 
Compliments per 100K pas.  0.00 0.00 - 



12 | P a g e  
 

ATC Board Agenda Detail 
Agenda Item #: 4d 
Item Title:  DASH General Manager’s Summary   
Contact:  Josh Baker, General Manager  
Attachments:   None 
Customer Impact: None 
Board Action:  None/FYI  
GENERAL MANAGERS BRIEF/FOLLOW-UP ITEMS 
ZEB Presentation Follow-up: Any follow-up questions/thoughts/reflections from last month’s presentation? 

Farebox Upgrade Implementation: Over the last month, staff have learned from WMATA partners that the new 
Driver Control Unit (DCU) is essentially a stop-gap solution pending a new WMATA farebox design. WMATA is 
only purchasing DCU kits on an as-needed basis, therefore staff have determined this is also the best approach 
for DASH. Existing farebox equipment will remain compatible with WMATA’s SmarTrip system, however the DCU 
kits free us from the critical shortage of replacement logic boards. The General Manager has accepted staff 
recommendation that a fleetwide retrofit to the DCU kit be abandoned for now. 

Other Notable Items/Briefings from GM: 

• ATV Update with Council (Takeaways) 
• Forthcoming Mass Transit Magazine Interview & Cover Feature 
• Collaboration with Microsoft re: Electrification (GM and Sustainability Lead) 
• Collaboration with Environment Virginia re: Electrification 
• Additional VW Funds Opportunity through Smartscale/DRPT 

 
BATTERY-ELECTRIC ARTICULATED BUS DEMO 
DASH demoed its first articulated battery-electric bus from February 6-12. The 60-foot bus 
was featured in operation on various DASH routes for passengers to experience. The 
demonstration concluded at Market Square in front of City Hall prior to the February ATC 
Board Meeting. 

 
 
DASHING WORDS IN MOTION 
Submissions for the 2020 DASHing Words in Motion poetry competition concluded 
on February 17. DASHing Words in Motion is a collaborative project between 
Alexandria Transit Company and the Alexandria Office of Arts. Winners of this year’s 
competition will be announced soon.  
 
 

I-395 EXPRESS LANE REVENUE VIDEO  
DASH Assistant General Manager Raymond Mui discusses the Commuter Choice Program 
funds from the I-395 Express Lane toll revenue. These funds have been used to enhanced 
service on the AT1 PLUS and AT9 routes. Ridership on the AT1 Plus and AT9 routes is up 
by 29% and 48%, respectively, over the first three months of service! This video is available 
online at the DASH Bus YouTube account. 
 

 
DASH ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
The General Manager is pleased to officially announce the launch of the DASH Advisory Committee (DAC). The 
DAC is an initiative by the General Manager to increase community involvement in DASH decision making, public 
outreach, and advocacy. Comprised of engaged community members and users of DASH, this group could even 
turn into a feeder opportunity for future Board Members.  
 
The committee will for the first time in DASH history help to identify opportunities and issues, investigate and 
discuss transit related topics, and propose solutions and recommendations to make DASH services better.  
 
All information about the Committee is posted online at www.dashbus.com/DAC  
Applications are available online and are due by March 31 or will be open until 
filled. 
  

http://www.dashbus.com/DAC


13 | P a g e  
 

ATC Board Agenda Detail 
Agenda Item #: 5a 
Item Title:  Financial Update  
Contact:  Evan Davis, Director of Finance & Administration  
Attachments:   None 
Customer Impact: None 
Board Action:  None/FYI  
  

Alexandria Transit Company (DASH) 
Financial Update 

 
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2020 

 
January Results – Budget vs. Actual Report 
In January, ATC experienced a monthly deficit of ($177,425).  This was again because operating costs for 
enhanced service on the AT-1 PLUS and AT-9 have not yet been transferred to grant accounts.  The first 
reimbursement requests for each grant, together totaling over $1 million, were submitted to NVTC on February 
25.  These costs will now be transferred to the appropriate grant accounts, which will be reflected in the 
February financial reports. 
 
Significant budget variances and notable accounts in January include:  
 

• Passenger Revenue was remained strong in January.  January 2020 revenue was $51,295 higher than 
the same period of the prior year, with revenue ridership also exceeding the prior year by 8,847 trips.  
We attribute this primarily to the service enhancements on the AT-1 PLUS and AT-9 routes as well as 
increasing Metrorail ridership, both of which increase ridership across the entire system as passengers 
make connections.  Revenue increases specifically on the AT-1 PLUS and AT-9 routes have been adjusted 
against grant reimbursement requests per the requirements of the project agreements. 
 

• Vehicle Maintenance Service included payment for the ten bus wraps for the AT-1 PLUS specially 
branded service.  These costs have since been moved to the AT-1 PLUS grant, which will be reflected in 
the February report. 
 

• The Postage and Office Supplies line item has been renamed Office Equipment and Supplies for this 
and future financial reports and budgets.  This is a more accurate description as this line item includes 
not only office supplies and postage but also all IT equipment such as computers, phones, and printers. 
 

FY 2020 Projection 
We currently project a budget surplus of $286,318 for FY20, an increase from December’s projected surplus of 
$122,203.  The increase in projected surplus is driven by a reduced order quantity for farebox upgrade 
equipment as briefed by the General Manager.   
 
Over the last month, staff have learned from WMATA partners that the new Driver Control Unit (DCU) is 
essentially a stop-gap solution pending a new WMATA farebox design.  WMATA is only purchasing DCU kits on 
an as-needed basis, therefore staff determined this is also the best approach for DASH.  Existing farebox 
equipment will remain compatible with WMATA’s SmarTrip system, however the DCU kits free us from the 
critical shortage of replacement logic boards.  A fleetwide retrofit to the DCU kit is not necessary now nor will it 
be in the future.   

 
 
  



14 | P a g e  
 

ATC Board Agenda Detail 
Agenda Item #: 5b 
Item Title:  Balance Sheet 
Contact:  Evan Davis, Director of Finance & Administration 
Attachments:   None 
Customer Impact: None 
Board Action:  None/FYI  
  
 
 

ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT COMPANY 
Balance Sheet as of January 31, 2019 

        
  ASSETS     
  Cash - City of Alexandria Pooled  $                         -    
  Cash - Payroll Account                   19,937    
  Receivables                 520,063    
  Prepaid Expenditures                 416,994    
  Parts and Supplies Inventory                 682,145    
  Capital Assets            56,574,240    
  Less: Accumulated Depreciation            (25,453,160)   
  TOTAL ASSETS  $        32,760,219    
        
        
  LIABILITIES     
  Accounts Payable  $             124,299    
  Payroll Liabilities                   58,201    
  Accrued Vacation                 771,773    
  Due to Other Funds (Negative Cash Position)              1,244,535    
  Total Liabilities  $          2,198,808    
        
  NET POSITION     
  Net Investment in Capital Assets  $        31,121,080    
  Unrestricted                (559,669)   
  Total Net Position  $        30,561,411    
        
  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION  $        32,760,219    
        
        
  This statement is unaudited and prepared for the sole use of management and the Board of 

Directors of ATC. 
  

    
 
 
 
  



15 | P a g e  
 

ATC Board Agenda Detail 
Agenda Item #: 5c 
Item Title:  Summary Income Statement 
Contact:  Evan Davis, Director of Finance & Administration 
Attachments:   None 
Customer Impact: None 
Board Action:  None/FYI  
  
 

ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT COMPANY 
Summary Income Statement for the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2019 

          
    Actual Budget Variance 
  REVENUES:       
  City Contribution - King Street Trolley         581,756         581,756                    -    
  DASH Passenger Revenue      2,118,153      2,221,233         (103,080) 
  DASH AT2X Mark Center Charter         472,059         472,059                    -    
  DASH Other Charter Revenue      3,381,998      2,036,125       1,345,873  
  Miscellaneous Revenue           94,873           35,000            59,873  
  Total Operating Revenue      6,648,839      5,346,173       1,302,666  
          
  City Contribution -  Regular Subsidy      9,330,412      9,330,412                    -    
  Total Revenue    15,979,251    14,676,585       1,302,666  
          
  EXPENDITURES:       
  Operations      9,798,742      8,755,922      (1,042,820) 
  Maintenance      3,512,132      3,190,313         (321,819) 
  Administration      2,420,296      2,618,350          198,054  
  Capital Outlay         318,528         112,000         (206,528) 
  Total Expenditures    16,049,698    14,676,585      (1,373,113) 
          
  GRANT ACTIVITY:       
  State Grants           23,126                   -                      -    
  Local Match on State Grants           11,750                   -                      -    
  Grant Expenditures          (58,746)                  -                      -    
  Total Grant Activity          (23,870)                  -                      -    

  Net Surplus (Deficit)          (94,317)                  -             (70,447) 
          
  This statement is unaudited and prepared for the sole use of management and the Board of 

Directors of ATC.   
 
 
 
 
  



16 | P a g e  
 

ATC Board Agenda Detail 
Agenda Item #: 5d 
Item Title:  Budget vs. Actual Report 
Contact:  Evan Davis, Director of Finance & Administration 
Attachments:   None 
Customer Impact: None 
Board Action:  None/FYI  

  
 

 
 
  

Description CM Actual CM Budget Variance YTD Actual YTD Budget Variance
FY2020 

Projected

FY2020 
Annual 
Budget

Projected 
Year End 
Variance

REVENUE
City Contribution - King Street Trolley 83,108        83,108        -              581,756          581,756       -                997,293        997,293        -                
DASH Passenger Revenue 313,568      317,319      (3,751)         2,118,153       2,221,233    (103,080)       3,770,005     3,807,832     (37,827)         
DASH AT2X Mark Center Charter 67,437        67,437        -              472,059          472,059       -                809,241        809,241        -                
DASH Other Charter Revenue 675             290,875      (290,200)     3,381,998       2,036,125    1,345,873     3,401,998     3,490,504     (88,506)         
Miscellaneous Revenue (15)              5,000          (5,015)         94,873            35,000         59,873          144,614        60,000          84,614          
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 464,773      763,739      (298,966)     6,648,839       5,346,173    1,302,666     9,123,151     9,164,870     (41,719)         

City Contribution - Regular Subsidy 1,332,916   1,332,916   -              9,330,412       9,330,412    -                15,994,985   15,994,985   -                
TOTAL REVENUE 1,797,689   2,096,655   (298,966)     15,979,251     14,676,585  1,302,666     25,118,136   25,159,855   (41,719)         

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

OPERATIONS
Wages - O 902,901      948,379      45,478        7,524,944       6,638,653    (886,291)       11,392,520   11,380,573   (11,947)         
Fringe Benefits - O 164,489      144,789      (19,700)       1,005,462       1,013,523    8,061            1,771,197     1,737,450     (33,747)         
Payroll Taxes - O 67,758        73,250        5,492          590,725          512,750       (77,975)         876,419        879,000        2,582            
Retirement Contributions - O 65,442        69,208        3,766          535,453          484,456       (50,997)         819,408        830,500        11,092          
Total Operations Labor 1,200,590   1,235,626   35,036        9,656,584       8,649,382    (1,007,202)    14,859,544   14,827,523   (32,021)         

Operator Recruitment and Training 2,193          3,499          1,306          22,769            24,493         1,724            37,822          42,000          4,178            
Operating Materials and Supplies 1,259          10,333        9,074          113,674          72,331         (41,343)         122,552        124,000        1,448            
Training and Travel - O -              1,388          1,388          5,715              9,716           4,001            17,145          16,650          (495)              

TOTAL OPERATIONS EXPENDITURES 1,204,042   1,250,846   46,804        9,798,742       8,755,922    (1,042,820)    15,037,063   15,010,173   (26,890)         

MAINTENANCE
Wages - M 143,603      165,000      21,397        1,202,370       1,155,000    (47,370)         2,007,948     1,980,000     (27,948)         
Fringe Benefits - M 23,592        24,484        892             169,705          171,388       1,683            289,555        293,800        4,245            
Payroll Taxes - M 10,771        13,917        3,146          90,395            97,419         7,024            163,778        167,000        3,222            
Retirement Contributions - M 12,780        13,750        970             90,486            96,250         5,764            163,574        165,000        1,426            
Total Maintenance Labor 190,746      217,151      26,405        1,552,956       1,520,057    (32,899)         2,624,855     2,605,800     (19,055)         

Fuel & Lubricants 96,099        112,375      16,276        864,602          786,625       (77,977)         1,300,345     1,348,500     48,155          
Repair Parts 38,235        54,167        15,932        423,973          379,169       (44,804)         576,669        650,000        73,331          
Tires 3,029          11,333        8,304          91,340            79,331         (12,009)         130,341        136,000        5,659            
Vehicle Maintenance Service 84,770        19,334        (65,436)       302,466          135,338       (167,128)       227,444        232,000        4,556            
Laundry 2,374          3,000          626             19,842            21,000         1,158            35,943          36,000          57                 
Tools and Equipment -              1,150          1,150          7,484              8,050           566               10,984          13,800          2,816            
Building Maintenance 20,017        36,207        16,190        243,364          253,449       10,085          427,911        434,500        6,589            
Training and Travel - M -              1,042          1,042          6,105              7,294           1,189            9,105            12,500          3,395            
TOTAL MAINTENANCE 
EXPENDITURES 435,270      455,759      20,489        3,512,132       3,190,313    (321,819)       5,343,597     5,469,100     125,503        

ADMINISTRATION
Wages - A 96,449        117,253      20,804        835,899          820,771       (15,128)         1,443,515     1,407,050     (36,465)         
Fringe Benefits - A 18,305        16,062        (2,243)         117,914          112,434       (5,480)           199,194        192,745        (6,449)           
Payroll Taxes - A 7,204          9,000          1,796          61,680            63,000         1,320            109,330        108,000        (1,330)           
Retirement Contributions - A 8,861          9,125          264             61,796            63,875         2,079            110,521        109,500        (1,021)           
Total Administrative Labor 130,819      151,440      20,621        1,077,289       1,060,080    (17,209)         1,862,560     1,817,295     (45,265)         

Insurance 57,624        60,167        2,543          433,296          421,169       (12,127)         721,414        722,000        586               
Professional Services 84,994        86,995        2,001          535,556          608,965       73,409          949,750        1,043,935     94,185          
Utilities 28,497        19,825        (8,672)         139,568          138,775       (793)              241,604        237,900        (3,704)           
Printing & Advertising 4,373          7,438          3,065          54,745            52,066         (2,679)           91,746          89,250          (2,496)           
Telecommunications 8,326          8,083          (243)            56,549            56,581         32                 97,549          97,000          (549)              
Training, Travel, Events - A 4,021          7,084          3,063          49,226            49,588         362               85,659          85,000          (659)              
Office Equipment and Supplies 4,343          6,685          2,342          55,981            46,795         (9,186)           82,700          80,200          (2,500)           
Dues and Subscriptions 1,055          1,062          7                 6,336              7,434           1,098            12,961          12,750          (211)              
Grant Local Match 11,750        25,271        13,521        11,750            176,897       165,147        114,127        303,252        189,125        
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENDITURES 335,802      374,050      38,248        2,420,296       2,618,350    198,054        4,260,070     4,488,582     228,512        

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES 1,975,114   2,080,655   105,541      15,731,170     14,564,585  (1,166,585)    24,640,729   24,967,855   327,126        
 

CAPITAL OUTLAYS (non-CIP)
Computer and Office Equipment -              -              -              -                  -               -                -                -                -                
Maintenance Equipment -              10,333        10,333        318,528          72,331         (246,197)       123,455        124,000        545               
Other Equipment Investments -              5,667          5,667          -                  39,669         39,669          67,634          68,000          366               
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAYS (non-CIP) -              16,000        16,000        318,528          112,000       (206,528)       191,089        192,000        911               

NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (177,425)     -              (177,425)     (70,447)           -               (70,447)         286,318        -                286,318        

Alexandria Transit Company (DASH)
Budget vs. Actual Report for the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2019



17 | P a g e  
 

ATC Board Agenda Detail 
Agenda Item #: 6 
Item Title:  New Business    
Contacts:    Stephanie Salzone, Martin Barna, Evan Davis 
Attachments:   6a) Coronavirus Update; 6b) TDP Draft; 6c) Operating Budget; 6d) Board Recruitment  
Customer Impact: 6a) Significant   6b) Moderate  6c) Moderate  6d) Minimal  
Board Actions: 6a) Review/Feedback; 6b) Review/Feedback; 6c) Review/Feedback; 6d) Discussion 

6a) Coronavirus (COVID-19) DASH Strategy Briefing 
Stephanie Salzone, Safety & Security Manager for DASH has been appointed by the General Manager as the 
lead for the agency response to the Coronavirus threat and mitigation strategies. She will provide the Board 
a detailed oral update on actions taken thus far, a written synopsis is provided below. 

 
The CDC’s Risk Assessment 

• For most of the American public, who are unlikely to be exposed to this virus at this time, the immediate 
health risk from COVID-19 is considered low. 

• People in communities where ongoing community spread with the virus that causes COVID-19 has been 
reported are at elevated, though still relatively low risk of exposure. 

o As of March 6, 2020, there are no positive cases in Virginia, but three positive cases have been 
reported in Montgomery County, Maryland. 

 
Transportation Industry’s Response to COVID-19 

• Daily disinfection of all fleet vehicles (buses, supervisor vehicles, relief vehicles etc.). 
• Hand sanitizer and wipes made available to all employees. 
• Displaying posters from the CDC that educate the employees. 

 
ATC’s Response to COVID-19 

• Personal sized (1 oz.) hand sanitizers have been ordered and are now expected to arrive March 11 (they 
were on back order).  Any employee may have one if they do not have their own or do not have regular 
access to our existing automatic dispensers throughout the facility. 

• 30 bottles of disinfecting wipes (80 count) have been ordered and are now expected to arrive March 11 
(they were on back order).  They will be placed in “cleaning stations” throughout the facility for any 
employee to access to use in their work area. 

• Beginning Thursday, March 5, 2020, the maintenance department began intensively disinfecting buses as 
they returned from service. 

o We are actively hiring temporary employees to assist with this process and ensure every bus 
returning from service is being disinfected daily. 

• Beginning Monday, March 9, 2020, the facility’s frequently touched surfaces will be disinfected daily 
(Monday through Friday) by our cleaning contractor. 

• CDC posters are being displayed in Operations, Administration and Maintenance.  These posters educate on 
the preventative measures people should take to mitigate their exposure. 

• Daily updates are provided to staff via memorandums and postings. 
• We are exploring options to place hand sanitizer on all buses for both operator and passenger usage. 
• We are reviewing our plan to continue to provide service should we experience elevated absenteeism in our 

workforce. 
• We are discussing adjusting absenteeism rules in the event of an outbreak to discourage individuals from 

reporting if ill. 
• DASH anticipates utilizing a scaled down service plan in an extreme situation affecting the community. 

Similar service profiles to Snow Service, Saturday or Sunday service levels. 
• A dedicated website for keeping the ridership informed has been posted at www.dashbus.com/covid19  

 
 
Board Action: Discussion/Q&A/Recommendations 
Next Steps: None 
 
 

http://www.dashbus.com/covid19


18 | P a g e  
 

6b) Presentation of FY21 Draft ATC Transit Development Plan 

Martin Barna, Director of Planning and Scheduling will present the 2021 DRAFT TDP. The TDP has been distributed 
to the public for feedback, and there will be a public hearing for the Board at the April Meeting. The public hearing 
will also include the General Managers proposed budget. 

**Please refer to Attachments for 6b at the end of the Board Packet** 

Board Action: Discussion/Q&A/Recommendations 
Next Steps: Solicit Feedback, Submit Change Requests, Prepare for Public Hearing in April 
 
 

6c) Presentation of FY21 Final Proposed ATC Operating Budget 

Alexandria Transit Company 
FY 2021 General Manager’s Final Proposed Budget 

 
Operating Budget Summary 

The FY21 ATC General Manager’s Final Proposed Budget rises roughly $1.3 million (5.8%) over the FY20 operating 
budget.  This budget accounts for regular wage increases in keeping with the collective bargaining agreement and 
other pay scales as well as cost increases for fuel, repair parts, technology, and equipment. 
 

 
 
As in FY20, roughly 80% of budgeted expenditures are for personnel.  At the same time, nearly 80% of revenue 
consists of subsidy from the City of Alexandria operating budget.  The City’s subsidy is sourced from General Fund 
tax revenue. 
 
I-395 Commuter Choice Grant Not Included in Operating Budget: This increase does not reflect grant revenues 
and project costs for service improvements on the AT-1 PLUS and AT-9 funded by the I-395 Commuter Choice 
Program, as this is considered a separate grant project.  The grant budget is just under $5 million in total over 20 
months from October 2019 through June 2021. 
 
 
 
 

EXPENDITURES Change % Change

Personnel 18,260,150    79.1% 17,342,168    79.5% 917,982          5.3%
Non-Personnel 4,646,050      20.1% 4,314,512      19.8% 331,538          7.7%
Capital Outlay 190,000          0.8% 165,000          0.8% 25,000            15.2%

TOTAL 23,096,200    21,821,680    1,274,520      5.8%

REVENUES Change % Change
City Contribution Operating 17,086,497    74.0% 15,994,985    73.3% 1,091,512      6.8%
City Contribution Trolley 1,037,185      4.5% 997,293          4.6% 39,892            4.0%
Passenger Revenue 4,024,000      17.4% 3,812,832      17.5% 211,168          5.5%
Supported Routes & Charters 893,518          3.9% 961,570          4.4% (68,052)           -7.1%
Miscellaneous Revenue 55,000            0.2% 55,000            0.3% -                   0.0%

TOTAL 23,096,200    21,821,680    1,274,520      5.8%

FY 2021 Budget FY 2020 Budget

FY 2021 Budget FY 2020 Budget



19 | P a g e  
 

Highlights of the FY 2021 Operating Budget include: 
• 5.3% overall personnel increase, including: 

o Regular step increases for all personnel, with an additional 1.5% increase in the entire scale for 
union personnel (Bus Operators) per the CBA 

o Expected benefit rate increases averaging about 5% across providers 
 

• 7.7% increase in non-personnel, reflecting forecast for diesel fuel, repair parts, technology, and services 
 

• $25,000 increase in capital outlay to maintain regular heavy-duty maintenance equipment replacement 
schedule 
 

• Note that decreases from FY20 projected actual spending to the FY21 proposed budget are due to the one-
time Blue Line Shuttle operation from July-September 2019, which supported WMATA’s Platform 
Improvement Project 

 
AT-4 Route Segment Elimination 
The City Manager did exercise ATC’s proposed $170,000 reduction option to eliminate the AT-4 route segment 
between Braddock Road Metro Station and City Hall.  Staff estimate that only 15 daily riders on average currently 
travel from Central Alexandria through Braddock Road Metro Station to Old Town on the AT-4.  These riders will be 
able to transfer to the AT-2, AT-3, or AT-8 to continue their trips.  This route change is proposed to be implemented 
by October 2020.  More detailed discussion is presented in Section 5.1 of the FY 2021 – FY 2026 Transit 
Development Plan (TDP). 
 

 

 

--Continued Next Page-- 

 

  



20 | P a g e  
 

Capital Budget Requests 
A full discussion of the ATC projects included in the City Manager’s Proposed FY 2021 – FY 2030 Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) is included in Section 6 of the FY21-26 TDP.  Highlights of the ATC-related projects 
include the following. 
 

• Bus Fleet Replacement: The $80.2 million ten-year fleet replacement plan, calling for a full transition to 
purchasing only battery electric buses by FY26, is included.  However, half of the necessary funding ($40.1 
million) has not yet been identified.  Since no further DASH buses will be retired until FY23, staff will be 
working with City partners over the next two years to secure funding.  66 DASH buses will be replaced over 
the next ten years, with 15 of those projected as clean diesel buses and 51 electric buses.  Under this plan, 
the last clean diesel buses will be delivered in FY25 and retired in FY37. 
 

• Hybrid Bus and Trolley Powertrain Repair & Replacement: $2.4 million is allocated for repair and 
replacement of hybrid powertrain components, including battery packs, engines, and transmissions.  This is 
adequate to maintain the 52-bus hybrid fleet in a state of good repair.  This project will need to be 
expanded to cover electric bus battery maintenance as DASH’s electric fleet grows. 
 

• Facility and Fleet Expansion: This $35.1 million project will expand DASH’s existing facility to accommodate 
up to 45 additional buses and funds 26 expansion buses, 20 of which are currently programmed as electric 
buses.  $11.9 million of NVTA 70% funding has already been appropriated, with $23.2 million of Smart 
Scale funding in future years.  
 

• Electronic Fare Payment: $750,000 is allocated in FY21 for upgrades to hardware to support the next 
generation of fare payment systems, which consists of the existing SmarTrip system and new SmarTrip 
mobile app, as well as upgrades to the DASH Bus mobile app or a new regional mobile app.  As there are 
still many moving parts in the regional fare collection landscape, staff will be working closely with partners 
to determine the right investments for the future. 
 

• Technology: This project funds technology initiatives to improve ridership, cost efficiency, and customer 
satisfaction, such as scheduling software upgrades, onboard equipment, facility security, enhanced video 
monitoring, and advanced bus maintenance diagnostic systems.  DASH and City staff have recently 
transferred $477,000 of prior year unused money to this project to fund a scheduling software upgrade 
which will greatly enhance the design and operation of the new Alexandria Transit Vision Plan network.  
$855,000 is allocated in FY23-24 for other projects such as those listed above. 
 

• Department of General Services – Capital Facilities Maintenance Program (CFMP): The City’s Department 
of General Services, which has overall responsibility for DASH building maintenance, was allocated funding 
for the following projects. 

o Eight (8) Roller Bus Bay Doors: $263,000 in FY21 to replace with more efficient, reliable, and 
energy-saving models. 

o Ramp and Upper Parking Deck Repairs: $1.24 million in FY21 to perform necessary structural 
repair. 

o Bus Lift Replacements: $1.3 million in FY22 to completely replace the in-ground bus lifts with 
sealed, flood-proof upgrades. 

 
 
Board Action: Discussion/Q&A/Recommendations 
Next Steps: Solicit Feedback, Submit Change Requests, Prepare for Public Hearing in April 
 



21 | P a g e  
 

 

  

 FY21 PROPOSED 
BUDGET  FY20 BUDGET 

 FY21 vs. FY20 
BUDGET 

 FY20 PROJECTED 
ACTUAL* 

 FY 21 vs. FY20 
PROJ 

SERVICE CALCULATIONS & ASSUMPTIONS
Miles 2,028,000 2,081,749 -2.6% 2,553,032 -20.6%
Hours 241,983 244,433 -1.0% 294,567 -17.9%
Revenue Ridership 2,698,814 2,664,164 1.3% 2,672,093 1.0%

*FY20 Projected Actual numbers include the Blue Line Shuttle operation from July-September 2019.  Projection as of January 31, 2020.
REVENUE
City Contribution - DASH Operating 17,086,497           15,994,985           6.8% 15,994,985           6.8%
City Contribution - King Street Trolley 1,037,185             997,293                 4.0% 997,293                 4.0%
Passenger Revenue 4,024,000             3,812,832             5.5% 3,770,005             6.7%
Supported Routes & Charters 893,518                 961,570                 -7.1% 4,211,239             -78.8%
Miscellaneous Revenue 55,000                   55,000                   0.0% 144,614                 -62.0%
TOTAL REVENUE 23,096,200$         21,821,680$         5.8% 25,118,136$         -8.0%

EXPENSES

Administration
 FY21 PROPOSED 

BUDGET  FY20 BUDGET 
 FY21 vs. FY20 

BUDGET 
 FY20 PROJECTED 

ACTUAL 
 FY 21 vs. FY20 

PROJ 
Wages 1,751,300             1,571,600             11.4% 1,443,515             21.3%
Fringe Benefits 205,550                 186,745                 10.1% 199,194                 3.2%
Payroll Taxes 130,700                 122,000                 7.1% 109,330                 19.5%
Retirement Costs 122,400                 113,500                 7.8% 110,521                 10.7%
Insurance 713,000                 692,000                 3.0% 721,414                 -1.2%
Professional Services 822,000                 762,740                 7.8% 949,750                 -13.5%
Utilities 254,000                 296,900                 -14.4% 241,604                 5.1%
Telecommunications 70,000                   70,000                   0.0% 97,549                   -28.2%
Printing & Advertising 65,000                   68,000                   -4.4% 91,746                   -29.2%
Training and Travel 52,000                   42,000                   23.8% 51,763                   0.5%
Office Equipment & Supplies 46,350                   21,620                   114.4% 82,700                   -44.0%
Employee Recognition 25,000                   -                          0.0% 33,896                   -26.2%
Dues and Subscriptions 15,000                   14,950                   0.3% 12,961                   15.7%
Grant Local Match (DRPT Grants) 62,500                   72,252                   -13.5% 114,127                 -45.2%
Total Administration Expenses 4,334,800$           4,034,307$           7.4% 4,260,070$           1.8%

Maintenance
 FY21 PROPOSED 

BUDGET  FY20 BUDGET 
 FY21 vs. FY20 

BUDGET 
 FY20 PROJECTED 

ACTUAL 
 FY 21 vs. FY20 

PROJ 
Wages 2,134,900             2,068,000             3.2% 2,007,948             6.3%
Fringe Benefits 288,800                 322,000                 -10.3% 289,555                 -0.3%
Payroll Taxes 161,300                 159,000                 1.4% 163,778                 -1.5%
Retirement Costs 168,700                 165,000                 2.2% 163,574                 3.1%
Fuel and Lubricants 1,332,000             1,227,000             8.6% 1,300,345             2.4%
Repair Parts 495,000                 435,000                 13.8% 576,669                 -14.2%
Tires 144,100                 101,000                 42.7% 130,341                 10.6%
Vehicle Maintenance Service 130,000                 105,000                 23.8% 227,444                 -42.8%
Tools and Equipment 15,000                   15,000                   0.0% 10,984                   36.6%
Laundry 33,500                   30,000                   11.7% 35,943                   -6.8%
Building Maintenance (incl. personnel) 254,900                 253,400                 0.6% 427,911                 -40.4%
Training and Travel 12,500                   7,000                      78.6% 9,105                      37.3%
Total Maintenance Expenses 5,170,700$           4,887,400$           5.8% 5,343,597$           -3.2%

Operations
 FY21 PROPOSED 

BUDGET  FY20 BUDGET 
 FY21 vs. FY20 

BUDGET 
 FY20 PROJECTED 

ACTUAL 
 FY 21 vs. FY20 

PROJ 
Wages 10,035,800           9,552,473             5.1% 11,392,520           -11.9%
Fringe Benefits 1,688,200             1,531,850             10.2% 1,771,197             -4.7%
Payroll Taxes 768,700                 758,000                 1.4% 876,419                 -12.3%
Retirement Costs 803,800                 792,000                 1.5% 819,408                 -1.9%
Operator Recruitment & Training 52,000                   58,000                   -10.3% 37,822                   37.5%
Operating Materials and Supplies 29,000                   26,000                   11.5% 122,552                 -76.3%
Training and Travel 23,200                   16,650                   39.3% 17,145                   35.3%
Total Operations Expenses 13,400,700$         12,734,973$         5.2% 15,037,063$         -10.9%

Capital Outlay 190,000$               165,000$               15.2% 191,089$               -0.6%

TOTAL 23,096,200$         21,821,680$         5.8% 24,831,819$         -7.0%

Grand Total Surplus/(Deficit) -$                            -$                            286,317$               

Operating Ratio 26.0% 26.7% 36.7%

Alexandria Transit Company
Fiscal Year 2021 General Manager's Final Proposed Budget



22 | P a g e  
 

6d) ATC Board Candidate Recruitment Process Briefing/Discussion 
Following the disucssion at the February ATC Board Meeting, Chairman David Kaplan and General Manager Josh 
Baker reviewed strategies for the recruitment of new ATC Board Members. At the request of the Chairman, the 
General Manager has worked with DASH staff to develop the following plan. It is a recommended process for which 
Board Feedback is being requested.  

TIMELINE: Proposed Timeline of the Board Recruitment 
   

Advertisement/Posting Live:    3/12/2020 
  Accepting Applications:     3/12/2020 – 4/17/2020 
   Board Sub-Committee Meet/Select Candidates:  4/20/2020 (week of) 
  ATC Board Interviews:     5/13/2020 (4:00pm) 
  Council Stockholders/Confirmation:   5/26/2020 
  New Members Orientation/Seated:   6/10/2020 
 
APPLICATION PROCESS: 

• Available Online at DASH Website 
o Link/Direction to Application posted with City’s Boards and Commissions 

• Applications provided to Board Committee weekly upon receipt for review 
• NEW: Application Process is Electronic to help speed applications and ensure they are received promptly 

 
ADVERTISING/RECRUITMENT ACTIONS: 

• Advertise with City Boards and Commissions (Active) 
• Hard push/Active drive on PR/Marketing across all platforms (DASH Facebook, LinkedIn, Instagram, E-Blast 

Newsletter) 
• Printed Notices on DASH Buses (2 per bus) 
• Notices at Bus Stops utilizing Electronic Signage Technology 
• Newspaper Advertisements 

o Zebra 
o Gazette 

• Online/Other Advertising 
o Greater Greater Washington 
o WTOP 
o ALX Now 
o COMTO, WTS (industry associations) 
o Chamber of Commerce 
o Visit Alexandria 

• Notices 
o To NVTC/NVTA 
o To APTA 
o To CTAV 

 
IN PERSON RECRUITMENT: 

• Recommend DASH Board Members actively recruit 
• DASH Staff to visit and talk with Boards and Commissions (or provide written comms if schedule space 

unavailable) 
o Commission for Women 
o Commission on Aging 
o Commission on Persons with Disabilities 

 

 

  



23 | P a g e  
 

ATC Board Agenda Detail 
Agenda Item #: 7 
Item Title:  Executive Session 
Contact:  Chairman David Kaplan, General Manager Josh Baker 
Attachments:   None   
Customer Impact  None  
Board Action:  Motions to enter session and certify session 
  
 
Executive Session 
Consideration of Convening an Executive Session for the Purpose of Discussing Legal and Personnel Matters, 
pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A1) of the Code of Virginia 
 
  



24 | P a g e  
 

ATC Board Agenda Detail 
Agenda Item #: 8 
Item Title:  Next Meeting and Adjournment     
Contact:  All   
Attachments:   None   
Customer Impact  None  
Board Action:  Motion and Approval of Adjournment   
  
 

 
NEXT ATC BOARD MEETING 

 
Wednesday, April 8th, 2020 at 5:30 p.m.   
at Alexandria City Hall, 301 King Street 

 
 

--Consider Adjournment-- 
 



25 | P a g e  
 

Alexandria Transit Company 

Board of Directors Meeting 
 

 

 

 

Attachments:  
1. Draft Transit Development Plan (TDP)  

FY 2021 - 2026 
2. Transit Development Plan Presentation 

(PowerPoint) 
 



 

 

 
 

 
FY 2021 – FY 2026 

ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT COMPANY (DASH)  
TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN - DRAFT 

 
 

 
 

PRESENTED TO ATC (DASH) BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MARCH 11, 2020 

 

 
 

See www.dashbus.com for more information about upcoming TDP events, meetings and 
other ways to provide feedback.  

http://www.dashbus.com/


 

0 | FY2020 – FY2025 ATC Transit Development Plan (FINAL) 
 

FY 2021 - FY 2026 ATC TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
1.0 / Executive Summary ..................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 System Performance .................................................................................................................. 1 

1.2 FY 2021 Service & Fare Changes ................................................................................................ 1 

1.3 FY 2022 – FY 2026 Service & Fare Changes  ............................................................................... 3 

1.4 ATC Capital Program .................................................................................................................. 3 

2.0 / TDP Background .......................................................................................................................... 5 

2.1 Purpose & Format ...................................................................................................................... 5 

2.2 Process & Timeline ..................................................................................................................... 5 

2.3 Alexandria Transit Vision Plan .................................................................................................... 7 

3.0 / System Summary ......................................................................................................................... 8 

3.1 Service Area ............................................................................................................................... 8 

3.2 Routes ........................................................................................................................................ 8 

3.3 Other Transit Providers  ........................................................................................................... 12 

3.4 Passenger Facilities .................................................................................................................. 12 

3.5 Bus Fleet ................................................................................................................................... 13 

3.6 Fares ......................................................................................................................................... 14 

3.7 Funding .................................................................................................................................... 14 

4.0 / System Performance .................................................................................................................. 16 

4.1 Service Provided....................................................................................................................... 16 

4.2 System Ridership ...................................................................................................................... 16 

4.3 Ridership by Route  .................................................................................................................. 18 

4.4 Cost Efficiency .......................................................................................................................... 20 

4.5 Operating Ratio ........................................................................................................................ 21 

4.6 Service Reliability ..................................................................................................................... 21 

4.7 Access & Mobility ..................................................................................................................... 22 

4.8 System Performance Summary ................................................................................................ 25 

5.0 / Service & Fare Recommendations .............................................................................................. 26 

5.1 FY 2021 Service Recommendations ......................................................................................... 26 

5.2 FY 2021 Fare Recommendations ............................................................................................. 28 

5.3 FY 2022 – FY 2026 Service & Fare Recommendations  ............................................................ 29 

6.0 / ATC Capital Program .................................................................................................................. 39 



 

0 | FY2020 – FY2025 ATC Transit Development Plan (FINAL) 
 

6.1 FY 2021 – FY 2030 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) ................................................................. 39 

6.2 Fleet Replacement Plan ........................................................................................................... 39 

6.3 Fleet Expansion ........................................................................................................................ 41 

6.4 Battery Pack Replacement ....................................................................................................... 41 

6.5 Electric Bus Program ................................................................................................................ 43 

6.6 DASH Facility Expansion ........................................................................................................... 44 

6.7 Technology Improvements ...................................................................................................... 44 

6.8 Other Capital Outlay Items ...................................................................................................... 46 

7.0 / Public Outreach ......................................................................................................................... 47 

7.1 Outreach Summary .................................................................................................................. 47 

7.2 TDP Changes ............................................................................................................................ 47 

 
 
 
 



 

1 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

1.0 / Executive Summary 
 
This document represents the FY 2021 – FY 2026 Transit Development Plan (TDP) for the Alexandria 
Transit Company (ATC).  The Alexandria Transit Company is responsible for the management, operation 
and maintenance of the DASH bus system in Alexandria, Virginia.     
 
The Transit Development Plan (TDP) provides a comprehensive vision of future service development, 
fare adjustments, and capital investments based on recommendations from the General Manager, ATC 
Board of Directors and DASH staff.  More specifically, it evaluates current DASH system performance, 
outlines projected service levels for the fiscally-constrained FY 2021 operating budget, and provides 
fiscally-unconstrained guidance on future service changes and capital improvements for the remaining 
five years of the six-year plan cycle (FY 2022 – FY 2026).  The TDP is updated each year by DASH staff and 
is subject to annual review, amendment, and adoption by the ATC Board of Directors.  The document 
also serves as a resource for the city staff as they consider future ATC requests for financial assistance. 
 
The FY 2021 Transit Development Plan addresses the period beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 
2026.  The document has been prepared in accordance with board-adopted procedures and is divided 
into four main sections – System Overview (Section 3), System Performance (Section 4), Service & Fare 
Change Recommendations (Section 5), and Capital Budget (Section 6). 
 
The key findings and recommendations of these four sections are summarized below: 
 
1.1 / System Performance 
 

• In FY 2019, DASH operated over 215,000 revenue hours of regular DASH service, which was a 1.5 
percent decrease as compared to the amount of revenue hours operated in FY 2018.   
 

• DASH recorded nearly 3.8 million boardings in FY 2019, a 2.8 percent decrease from FY 2018.  
Excluding the months during the Metrorail Platform Improvement Project (PIP), the total 
decrease was only 1.2 percent from FY 2018.  For comparison purposes, Metrobus average daily 
ridership in Northern Virginia was down by 4.7 percent during the same period.   

 

• The DASH Operating Ratio, which measures the portion of total annual operating costs that are 
covered by revenues was 36.8 percent in FY 2019, or 4.6 percent higher than FY 2018.  This 
increase is due to revenue earned in providing contract service to WMATA during the Metrorail 
Platform Improvement Project. 

 

• DASH On-Time Performance was 85.2 percent in FY 2019, which represent a 3.1 percent 
improvement from FY 2018, when 82.1 percent of service was provided on time. 

 
1.2 / FY 2021 Service & Fare Change Recommendations 
 

• The following DASH service changes are proposed for FY 2021: 
 

o FY 2021 Service Levels. DASH projects that FY 2021 service levels for regular DASH 
routes and the King Street Trolley will be roughly 242,000 platform hours and 2,028,000 
platform miles.  These totals represent overall service decreases of 1.6 percent and 2.6 
percent, respectively, from projected FY 2020 levels exclusive of the Commuter Choice 



 

2 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

and Platform Improvement Project service enhancements.  The total annual service 
provided for FY 2021, including the I-395 Commuter Choice improvements, is estimated 
to be 272,000 platform hours and 2,359,000 platform miles. 

 
o AT-4 Old Town Service Discontinuation.  DASH proposed to remove the southernmost 

segment of the AT-4 routing so that the route ends at the Braddock Road Metro Station 
instead of continuing into Old Town (Effective Fall 2020) 
 

o Season Trolley Re-Route.  The King Street Trolley will be re-routed over the summer on 
weekends as part of the King Street Place project, which will partially shut down the 100 
block of King Street to vehicle traffic.  The Trolley will continue to serve the Waterfront 
stop via a modified routing along North Lee Street, Cameron Street, and North Union 
Street. 
 

o Holiday Service Plan Changes. DASH proposes to modify its holiday operating plan so 
that DASH runs Sunday service on Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, and New Year’s Day 
instead of operating no regular service.  This change is consistent with other regional 
operators and will benefit customers who still need to make bus trips on those days. 
 

• The following DASH fare-related actions are proposed for FY 2021: 
 

o Fare Changes. No changes to the base fare or DASH Pass are proposed for FY 2021. 
 

o WMATA Pass Products.  DASH staff are in preliminary discussions with the City of 
Alexandria and regional partners to begin allowing DASH passengers to use any WMATA 
pass product as valid fare payment, in accordance with recommendations from 
WMATA’s Bus Transformation Project.  Currently, DASH accepts the 7-Day Regional Bus 
Pass and participates in a regional revenue sharing agreement that distributes funds 
based on pass usage.  The proposed change would expand this agreement to include all 
current and future WMATA regional passes for both bus and rail.   

 
o Free Student Rides.  DASH staff will continue the “Free Student Rides” program for 

Alexandria high school students for its fourth year.  DASH staff will continue to pursue 
fare partnerships with other partner organizations that will promote new ridership 
and/or increase revenues. 

 
o Fare-Free Days.  DASH staff will explore the possibility of operating fare-free service on 

selected days to promote public transit awareness.  Eligible days could include but are 
not limited to holidays, election days, air quality alert days, or the introduction of major 
service changes such as the new ATV network. 

 
o Mobile Ticketing Pilot.  The DASH Bus app was launched in Spring 2019 as a one-year 

pilot with options for contract extensions in subsequent years.  DASH staff will be 
evaluating the pilot in the spring to determine if it should be continued and what the 
next phase will be. 

 

• I-395 Commuter Choice Program. DASH will continue the service enhancements on the AT-1 
Plus and the AT-9 as part of the inaugural I-395 Commuter Choice program through the end of 



 

3 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

FY 2021.  The selected improvements are the first step towards the Alexandria Transit Vision 
Plan networks and a precursor to the future West End Transitway service. DASH will apply for 
additional service enhancements as identified through the Alexandria Transit Vision Plan for the 
FY 2022 – FY 2023 I-395 Commuter Choice project cycle. 

 
1.3 / FY 2022 – FY 2026 Service & Fare Change Recommendations 
 

• In FY 2022, DASH is planning to implement the new 2022 Alexandria Transit Vision (ATV) Plan 
network, which is the first major step towards the final 2030 ATV Plan.  As shown in Section 5-3, 
the new 2022 network features a series of frequent, all-day routes running along key corridors 
that will provide a significant increase in access to useful transit for most Alexandria residents.  
The network was adopted by the ATC Board of Directors in December 2019 and will be included 
in the FY 2022 Transit Development Plan (TDP) and will be taken under consideration by City 
Council as part of the FY 2022 city budget approval process. 
 

• Between FY 2022 and FY 2030, DASH is planning to implement the 2030 ATV Plan Network. As 
shown in Section 5-3, these recommendations include route realignments in West Alexandria 
and major frequency and span improvements. 
 

• Free Transfers to/from Metrorail.  DASH is working with WMATA and City staff on a potential 
fare policy change to allow free transfers to/from Metrorail in the near future.   
 

• No additional fare changes for FY 2022 or beyond are being proposed at this time. 
 
 
1.4 / ATC Capital Program Summary 
 

• As of the start of FY 2021, the current DASH bus fleet includes 99 active buses, and five 
emergency contingency spares:  
 

o In FY 2020, DASH purchased and took delivery of 8 new New Flyer clean diesel buses to 
improve the agency’s spare ratio and increase service reliability.  The buses were 
delivered in December 2019 and began operating in revenue service in February 2020. 
 

o In FY 2021, DASH will be taking delivery of its first six battery electric buses through the 
VW Mitigation Trust program.  These buses will replace the six remaining Orion diesel 
buses.  The installation of the charging equipment and the corresponding facility 
upgrades will be completed by Summer 2020 and are funded by NVTA. 

 
o In order to operate the AT-1 Plus and AT-9 service enhancements, DASH made the 

decision to keep six of the articulated buses that DASH used to operate the Blue Line 
Shuttle during the Summer 2019 WMATA Platform Improvement Project. 

 
o DASH has also kept five additional coaches – including two Gillig Phantoms and three 

MCI’s – that were purchased as part of the Platform Improvement Project.  These buses 
are intended to help supplement the DASH charter fleet, but may also be used as 
emergency contingency buses, if needed. 

 



 

4 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

• Fleet Replacement.  The City of Alexandria’s FY 2021 – FY 2030 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
includes substantial funding for DASH replacement buses that will allow DASH to maintain its 
State of Good Repair (SGR), however, due to a gap in bus purchases between 2007 and 2011, 
DASH is not slated to receive any CIP funding for replacement buses in FY 2021 or FY 2022.  The 
total approved FY 2021 – FY 2030 CIP funding for replacement bus purchases – including a 
gradual transition to zero-emission fleet – is $80.2 million. 
 

• Zero-Emission Fleet Planning. DASH recently worked with the Center for Transportation & the 
Environment (CTE) to complete a Zero-Emission Fleet Feasibility Study.  In 2020, DASH will be 
conducting a Zero-Emission Fleet Implementation Plan to determine the path forward towards a 
zero-emission bus fleet. 
 

• DASH Facility & Fleet Expansion Project.  DASH is entering the solicitation phase for a major 
facility expansion project that will be funded by the state’s Smart Scale program.  The project 
will allow DASH to expand its facility onto the existing city impound lot that is located 
immediately west of the existing DASH garage.  The expansion will include capacity for up to 45 
additional buses and electric charging equipment and infrastructure in support of a future zero-
emission bus fleet.  It also includes six expansion buses by FY 2023. 
 

• Other Capital Improvement Projects. Additional FY 2021 – FY 2030 CIP funds are allocated for 
hybrid powertrain replacement, electronic fare payment, farebox upgrades, and other DASH 
technology needs.   

 



 

5 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

2.0 / TDP Background 
 
The Transit Development Plan is prepared each year to document and present the General Manager’s 
recommendations relating to service, fares and the capital budget for the upcoming fiscal year. The plan 
also serves as a planning and budgetary road map for the following five years.  To this end, the TDP 
provides an evaluation of the existing DASH bus service and a corresponding outline for future service 
development and capital investment.  The plan aligns with the budgetary assumptions for the upcoming 
fiscal year (FY 2021) and will be used as a starting point for budget discussions in future fiscal years (FY 
2022 – FY 2026). 
 
2.1 / Purpose & Format 
 
The Transit Development Plan (TDP) is designed to provide a comprehensive vision of future service 
development, fare adjustments, and capital investments based on recommendations from the General 
Manager, ATC Board of Directors and DASH staff.  More specifically, it evaluates current DASH system 
performance, outlines projected service levels for the fiscally-constrained FY 2021 operating budget, and 
provides fiscally-unconstrained guidance on future service changes and capital improvements for the 
remaining five years of the six-year plan cycle (FY 2022 – FY 2026).  The TDP is updated each year by 
DASH staff and is subject to annual review, amendment, and adoption by the ATC Board of Directors.  
The document also serves as a resource for the city staff as they consider future ATC requests for 
financial assistance 
 
2.2 / Process & Timeline 
 
The TDP approval process is designed to run in parallel with the City of Alexandria’s annual budget 
timeline.  As shown in Table 2-1, the basic TDP assumptions are developed by DASH management in the 
late fall and early winter.  A preliminary draft of the TDP is typically submitted to the Board of Directors 
and released for public review in March.  This release marks the beginning of a month-long public 
comment period that culminates with a formal public hearing at the April meeting of the ATC Board.  
The public comment period includes multiple community meetings, online engagement and the 
opportunity for comments to be submitted via phone, email, or in person at the Board of Directors 
meeting in April. DASH staff reviews all feedback and modifies the document as needed to incorporate 
feedback and align with the final city budget.  The final ATC Transit Development Plan is then reviewed 
and adopted by the ATC Board of Directors in May so that the plan may be implemented for the 
subsequent fiscal year on July 1st. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

6 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Table 2 – 1 / Annual ATC Transit Development Plan (TDP) Timeline 
 

Month ATC/DASH Activity City Activity 
July No Actions No Actions 

August No Actions No Actions 

September 
DASH Finance Department 

Develops and Distributes Budget 
Process to internal staff 

No Actions 

October 
Draft ATC Budget Presented to 

Board 

City Manager releases Priorities 
and Instructions Memorandum, 

Current Services Budget Submitted 
to City OMB 

November 
Board Acts to Approve or Amend 

Draft Budget, including 
Supplementals and Reductions 

Supplementals and Reductions 
Submitted to City OMB 

December No Actions No Actions 

January No Actions 
City Manager Finalizes Proposed 

Budget and CIP 

February No Actions 
City Manager Releases Proposed 

Budget and CIP to City Council 

March 
Draft TDP and Budget Presented to 
Board and released for month-long 

public comment period 
City Budget Hearings 

April 
Board holds Public Hearings for 

Draft TDP and Budget 
City Budget Hearings ongoing 

May No Actions City Council Adopts Budget and CIP 

June Board Adopts TDP and Budget No Actions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 / Alexandria Transit Vision Plan 



 

7 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

 
The Alexandria Transit Vision (ATV) Plan is an ambitious bus 
network redesign study by DASH and the City of Alexandria 
that takes a community-driven approach to re-designing the 
city’s transit network from scratch.  The ultimate goal of the 
ATV – as determined through community outreach – is to 
create a more useful bus network that encourages more people to go more places at more times using 
transit.  Similar transit network redesigns have been successfully implemented in Houston, Seattle, San 
Jose and Richmond. 

 
After three rounds of public engagement and nearly two years of 
discussion, the final 2022 and 2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Plan 
networks were adopted by the DASH Board of Directors in December 
2019.  The networks were designed based on the policy guidance that 
DASH should dedicate 85 percent of its annual revenue hours to 
ridership maximization, and 15 percent to coverage-oriented service.  
The resulting 2030 ATV recommendations would create a network of 
frequent, all-day bus routes across the City of Alexandria that will 
provide significant improvements in mobility options for most 
Alexandria residents and encourage additional transit usage, which 
benefits the City as a whole.  Additional information, maps and tables 
for the 2022 and 2030 ATV networks are provided in Section 5-3 of this 
plan and on the ATV website (www.dashbus.com/transitvision). 
 

The 2022 ATV Network is planned for implementation in July 2021 and will therefore be included in the 
DASH subsidy request in the City of Alexandria’s FY 2022 budget cycle.  Through this process, city staff 
and City Council will have the ultimate discretion on the amount of funding that will be made available 
for the implementation of the 2022 ATV Network.  Consequently, the service, fare, and capital 
improvement recommendations for FY 2021 include very few changes, but the FY 2022 – FY 2027 
recommendations are guided almost exclusively by the final network recommendations in the 
Alexandria Transit Vision (ATV) Plan.  The one service change that is proposed for FY 2021 – the 
elimination of AT-4 service between the Braddock Road Metro and City Hall – is consistent with the 
future ATV Plan network. 
 
One of the major discussion items during the DASH Board of Directors’ consideration of the Final ATV 
Network was the decision to continue local AT-2 bus service along Seminary Road and Janneys Lane 
between Howard Street and King Street.  While the Board ultimate decided that the local bus service 
should be continued, it recommended that the ridership along that segment should be monitored on an 
annual basis to ensure that the ridership was sufficient to warrant the continuation of the service.  As a 
result, the ridership on this segment will be provided in Section 4 of each annual TDP until FY 2025 to 
determine if the benchmark of a 20% increase in average weekday boardings is being met. 
 
Lastly, one of the biggest themes of the ATV Plan was the idea of increasing freedom of mobility, which 
in turn, increases access to opportunities ranging from jobs to education, from health care to childcare, 
and from social activities to civic involvement.  To this end, future DASH Transit Development Plans will 
include performance measures that calculate the number of city residents who have access to useful, 
frequent, all-day transit, and the number of people and jobs that are within a 30-minute transit trip of 
key destinations around the city.   

http://www.dashbus.com/transitvision


 

8 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

3.0 / System Summary 
 
DASH operates traditional fixed-route bus service on eleven regular bus routes, and the King Street 
Trolley.  The primary DASH service area covers approximately 15 square miles and generally aligns with 
the jurisdictional boundaries of the City of Alexandria. A map of the DASH bus system is included as 
Figure 3-1.  An inset map depicting bus service in Old Town Alexandria is shown as Figure 3-2. 
 
3.1 / Service Area 
 
The majority of DASH service operates within the City of Alexandria, however, two routes – the AT-3 and 
AT-4 – also provide service along Interstate 395 between Alexandria and the Pentagon during weekday 
peak hours.  As shown in Figures 3-1 and 3-2, the DASH bus system design follows a modified hub-and-
spoke network design model with Old Town as the “hub”, and the major east-west arterials (King Street, 
Seminary Road, Duke Street, and Eisenhower Avenue) serving as the “spokes”.  Several “crosstown 
routes” also provide connections between outlying areas and major trip generators on the West End 
and northern Alexandria.   All but one of the twelve DASH routes connect to at least one of the four 
Metrorail Stations within the City of Alexandria. 
 
Based on a geospatial analysis of the DASH network, approximately 146,000 Alexandria residents (96% 
of all residents) are within short walking distance (¼ mile) of a DASH or WMATA bus stop.  Roughly 
82,000 jobs (91% of all jobs) in or around Alexandria are within short walking distance of a DASH or 
WMATA bus stop.   
  
3.2 / Routes 
 
The DASH bus system consists of 11 regular bus routes and the King Street Trolley.  The basic 
characteristics of each route are summarized in Table 3-1.  All twelve bus routes operate on weekdays, 
however, only eight routes run on Saturdays and Sundays.  On most routes, weekday service runs from 
roughly 6:00 AM to 10:00 PM, Saturday service from 7:00 AM to 10:00 PM, and Sunday service from 
8:00 AM to 8:00 PM.  Weekday peak service for most routes runs every 15-30 minutes.  Weekday off-
peak service typically runs every 30-60 minutes during mid-days and evenings.  Of the eight Saturday 
routes, five run every 30 minutes or less, while on Sundays, six of the eight routes only run once every 
hour. 
 
DASH also operates the iconic King Street Trolley, a free tourist-oriented service running between the 
King Street Metro and the Old Town Waterfront.   The trolleys run every 10-15 minutes, 365 days per 
year.  Daily service starts at 10:30 AM and typically ends at 10:30 PM, with extended late-night service 
on Thursdays, Fridays, and Saturdays. 
 
Additional information on the destinations, service levels and operating characteristics for specific DASH 
routes is provided in Table 3-1. 
 



 

9 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

 
Figure 3 – 1 / DASH System Map 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

10 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Figure 3 -2 / Old Town Alexandria Inset Map 

 



 

11 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Table 3-1 / DASH Service Characteristics by Route 

Span Peak Off-Peak Night Span Freq. Span Freq. Wky Sat Sun Wky Sat Sun Wky Sat Sun

AT1
Seminary Plaza to Van Dorn Metro via 

Beauregard & Duke

6am - 

11pm
10 20 60

7am - 

11pm
30

8am - 

11pm
30 14 5 4 2,049 1,056 786 148.8 75.8 63.9

AT2 

(2X)

Lincolnia to Braddock Road Metro via Seminary, 

King Street Metro & Old Town                                         

(2X - Mark Center Express)

6am - 

10pm (6 - 

9am &         

3 - 6pm)

20/30 

(10/20)
30 60

8am - 

11pm
60 8am - 8pm 60 12 3 2.5 1,341 420 345 90.0 34.2 28.8

AT3
Hunting Point to Pentagon Metro via Old Town, 

Braddock, Russell, Glebe and I-395

6 - 9am &     

4 - 8pm
20 - - - - - - 5 - - 592 - - 37.8 - -

AT4
City Hall to Pentagon Metro via Old Town, 

Braddock Road Metro, Cameron Mills, and I-395

6 - 9am &     

4 - 7:30pm
20 - - - - - - 5 - - 501 - - 38.8 - -

AT3/4
City Hall to Parkfairfax Loop via Old Town, 

Braddock Road Metro, Braddock, Glebe & Russell

10:30am - 

3pm & 

8:30 - 

10:30pm

- 60 60 9am - 8pm 60 9am - 6pm 60 0 1 1 38 56 57 11.9 11.9 10.9

AT5
Van Dorn Metro to Braddock Road Metro via 

Landmark Mall, Van Dorn, King & Old Town 

6am - 

10:30pm
20/30 30 60

7:30am - 

10:30pm
30 8am - 8pm 60 7 6 2.5 1,354 797 349 90.8 93.3 36.3

AT6 King Street Metro to NVCC via King 
6am - 

10pm
15 30 30 - - - - 5 - - 692 - - 55.6 - -

AT7
Landmark Mall to Lee Center via Van Dorn Metro, 

Eisenhower Metro, King Street Metro & Old Town

6am - 

10pm
30 60 60 - - - - 5 - - 606 - - 58.3 - -

AT8
Braddock Road Metro to Van Dorn Metro via Old 

Town, King Street Metro, Duke & Landmark

5:30 am - 

12 am
10/20 30 60

7am - 

11:30pm
30

7am - 

11pm
20/40 10 4 3 2,371 1,116 873 119.7 76.8 65.9

AT9
Potomac Yard to Mark Center via Glebe, 

Shirlington, King & NVCC

7am - 

11pm
20 30 60

7:30am - 

11pm
30

7:30am - 

10:30pm
30 4 4 4 789 357 273 78.1 63.0 63.0

AT10
Potomac Yard to King Street Metro via Mt. Vernon, 

Del Ray & Commonwealth

7am - 

10pm
30 30 60

7am - 

10pm
30 9am - 7pm 60 2 2 1 389 272 132 29.9 29.9 10.8

KST King Street Trolley

10:30am - 

10:30pm 

(12am Th, 

Fri & Sat)

10-15 10-15 10-15
10am - 

12am
10-15

10am - 

10:15pm
10-15 4/5 4/5 4/5 1,418 2,328 1,559 44.1 53.3 56.3

Avg. Daily Boardings              

(November 2019)

Daily Rev. Hours               

(November 2019)Route Route Description

Span/Frequency Peak Vehicle Req's 

(Approx)Weekday Saturday Sunday



 

12 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

3.3 / Other Transit Providers 
 
The DASH bus network in Alexandria provides a local complement to the regional transit network.   
Regional operators that provide service to/from Alexandria include: 
 

• Metrorail (WMATA).  Metrorail operates heavy rail service to 91 stations throughout the 
Washington, DC region, carrying over 620,000 passengers per weekday.  The City of Alexandria 
is served by the Blue and Yellow lines at four different Metrorail Stations – Braddock Road, King 
Street, Eisenhower Avenue, and Van Dorn.  DASH also provides service to the Pentagon Metro 
Station during weekday peak periods. The new Potomac Yard Metrorail Station – an in-fill 
station in northern Alexandria on Potomac Avenue – is slated to open in 2022.   

 

• Metrobus (WMATA).  In addition to Metrorail, WMATA also operates a regional bus network 
that carries about 350,000 passengers per weekday.  Metrobus runs 28 routes that provide 
service within the City of Alexandria.  This includes the “Metroway” rapid bus service between 
Pentagon City and Braddock Road Metro, and the Richmond Highway Express (REX), which 
provides frequent, limited-stop service from Mount Vernon to Old Town via Route 1. 

 

• Amtrak/Virginia Railway Express.  Intercity and commuter rail services such as Amtrak and VRE 
stop at Alexandria Union Station, before crossing the Potomac River into Washington, DC.   

 

• Private Shuttles.  Several dozen private shuttles operate within the City of Alexandria to provide 
connections to Metrorail Stations.  Examples include the Carlyle/PTO Shuttle, and the Van Dorn 
Exchange shuttle, which connects the Van Dorn Exchange apartment complex with the Van Dorn 
Metro.  

 

• Accessible Service.  Accessible paratransit options are provided through the City of Alexandria’s 
DOT program and the WMATA MetroAccess service.  

 
3.4 / Passenger Facilities 
 
DASH buses provide service to five Metrorail Stations, five non-Metrorail transit centers (Landmark Mall, 
Mark Center, Southern Towers, NVCC-Alexandria and Potomac Yard), and over 700 local bus stops.  
Roughly 22 percent of these stops are shared by Metrobus or another provider.  City staff estimates that 
roughly 90 DASH bus stops have shelters, while another 200 have amenities such as benches and/or 
trash cans.  Approximately 100 stops (14 percent) have route schedules mounted on the bus stop poles.  
The distribution of stop amenities is based primarily upon daily ridership, with shelters, benches and 
trash cans generally installed at any stop with over 40 daily boardings. 
 
In 2018, DASH began installing real-time bus arrival information 
kiosks and tablets at various high-ridership locations throughout the 
city.  Major kiosks have been installed at City Hall, Southern Towers, 
NVCC-Alexandria and NSF with additional screens planned for the 
King Street Metro and Mark Center Transit Center.  DASH has also 
worked with WMATA to install solar-powered real-time tablets 
similar to the one pictured at over 20 bus stops throughout the 
service area.  
 



 

13 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

All DASH bus stops that have been installed or updated since 2006 are compliant with ADA design 
standards for individuals using wheelchair or other mobility devices.  DASH also coordinates closely with 
city staff during the site plan review process to ensure any proposed developments include adequate 
considerations for existing and future bus stops. 
 
3.5 / Bus Fleet 
 
For the start of FY 2021, the DASH will be comprised of a core bus fleet of 99 active buses for use in daily 
revenue service.  The current peak service requirement in 81 vehicles, which translates to a current 
spare ratio of approximately 22 percent.  As part of the Summer 2019 Metrorail Shutdown, DASH 
purchased over 40 used buses from other transit agencies.  Though most of these buses have since been 
retired, five of the buses have been retained as a contingency fleet that can also be used for charter 
service.  The remaining 2002 Orions will be replaced by the six electric buses that are scheduled to arrive 
by late 2020. A summary of the active and contingency bus fleets are shown in Table 3-2. 

 
Table 3-2 / FY 2021 DASH Bus Fleet Summary 

 

 ACTIVE BUS FLEET

Vehicle ID's Year Make Type Length # of Vehicles

77, 78, 85, 86, 89, 90 2002 Orion Diesel 35' 6

200-206 2011 Gillig Hybrid 35’ 7

300-302 2011 Gillig Hybrid 40’ 3

400-404 2011 Gillig (Trolley) Hybrid 29’ 5

207-211 2012 Gillig Hybrid 35’ 5

303-307 2012 Gillig Hybrid 40’ 5

212-216 2014 Gillig Hybrid 35’ 5

308-309 2014 Gillig Hybrid 40’ 2

217-229 2015 Gillig Hybrid 35’ 13

405 2015 Gillig (Trolley) Hybrid 35' 1

230-233 2017 Gillig Hybrid 35’ 4

310-311 2017 Gillig Hybrid 40’ 2

501-514 2018 Gillig Clean Diesel 35’ 14

515-527 2019 New Flyer Clean Diesel 35' 13

528-530 2019 New Flyer Clean Diesel 35’ 3

601-603, 612-614 2002 Neoplan Diesel 60' 6

515-527 2019 New Flyer Clean Diesel 40' 5

99

 CONTINGENCY BUS FLEET

Vehicle ID's Year Make Type Length # of Vehicles

101-102 2005 Gillig (PRTC) Diesel 40' 2

103-105 2002 MCI Diesel 35’ 3

5

104

TOTAL ACTIVE FLEET  

TOTAL CONTINGENCY FLEET

TOTAL FLEET SIZE (ACTIVE + CONTINGENCY)



 

14 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

In order to maintain State of Good Repair, DASH is required to replace each bus once it reaches the end 
of its 12-year useful life cycle.  A more detailed discussion of bus fleet replacement, expansion plans and 
the “DASH Capital Budget Program” is included in Chapter 6. 
 
3.6 / Fares 
 
The current DASH base fare is $2.00 for a single trip with a four-hour DASH-to-DASH transfer window.  
DASH allows free transfers from most other bus providers with SmarTrip, and provides a $0.50 discount 
for transfers to and from Metrorail.  Disabled persons with valid Alexandria DOT or MetroAccess cards 
may board DASH buses for free.  Two routes – the King Street Trolley and the Mark Center Express (AT-
2X) – do not require fares as the operating costs are covered by dedicated external subsidies.  For 
frequent riders, DASH also offers the monthly DASH Pass, which costs $45.00 and entitles the cardholder 
to unlimited rides on DASH buses during the specified month. 
 
DASH continues to accept SmarTrip cards for rapid, automated fare payment.  Roughly 80 percent of 
DASH boardings are made using SmarTrip cards.  DASH is working closely with WMATA as they continue 
to upgrade their fare technologies in the hopes of further increasing passenger convenience and overall 
operational efficiency. 
 
In 2019, DASH launched the DASH Bus app, a mobile ticketing pilot program which allows customers to 
purchase their DASH fare products on smartphones using debit cards, credit cards and selected e-wallet 
platforms.  During the pilot period, passengers have been required to show the validation screen on 
their phone to the operator, but the long-term goal is to implement electronic fare validation where 
small readers attached to the farebox can validate mobile fare payments.  DASH will be evaluating the 
results of its mobile ticketing pilot project in Spring 2020 to determine what the next steps will be. 
 
In FY 2018, DASH started a pilot program to allow T.C. Williams High School students to ride for free 
using their student identification cards.   Since its inception, the “Free Student Rides” program has been 
expanded to include four additional schools – Bishop Ireton High School, Episcopal High School, St. 
Stephens & St. Agnes School and Fusion Academy.  DASH was also able to introduce Smartrip-enabled 
Student ID cards at each of the schools in 2018, and in 2019, two of the schools were migrate to the new 
DASH bus mobile payment app. 
 
3.7 / Funding 
 
DASH service is operated by the Alexandria Transit Company (ATC), which is an independent public 
service corporation that is owned by the City of Alexandria.  The City provides extensive input and 
guidance via the Transportation Planning Division of the city’s Department of Transportation & 
Environmental Services.  City staff play an integral role in supporting the DASH annual budget request 
and managing a wide variety of state and regional grant programs. 
 
The majority of annual DASH operating funds comes from an operating subsidy that is allocated each 
year from the City of Alexandria’s General Fund.  The City also provides funding for operations through 
the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and for capital investments through the biennial Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) process.   
 



 

15 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Additional external sources of DASH funding include the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transit 
(DRPT), the Northern Virginia Transportation Authority (NVTA), and the Northern Virginia Transportation 
Commission (NVTC) I-395 Commuter Choice Program. 
 
DASH also relies upon subsides to operate specific services such as the free King Street Trolley for the 
City of Alexandria, and the Mark Center Express for the Department of Defense.  Additional revenue is 
also generated by bus charters for both public and private events.  
 
Finally, passenger fare revenues typically cover between 20 and 25 percent of the annual DASH 
operating costs and are used to reduce the DASH operating subsidy from the city. 
 



 

16 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

4.0 / System Performance 
 
The following section uses FY 2019 data to review DASH service performance at both the system and 
route levels. The overall performance of a bus system is typically measured in terms of service provided 
(revenue hours), service consumed (ridership), cost efficiency (boardings per revenue hour, operating 
ratio), and service reliability (on-time performance, missed trips, road calls and customer feedback).   
Additional metrics such as access and mobility that were highlighted during the ATV Plan are also 
important in determining how well the transit network is meeting the needs of the community. 
 
4.1 / Service Provided 
 
In FY 2019, DASH operated approximately 215,000 hours of revenue bus service.  This represents a 1.5 
percent decrease as compared to FY 2018 service levels.  A graph showing the historic trend in DASH 
annual revenue hours for the last ten years is shown in Figure 4-1.   
 

Figure 4-1 / DASH Annual Revenue Hours (FY 2009 - FY 2019) 
 

 
 
4.2 / System Ridership 
 
As shown in Figure 4-2, annual ridership has fluctuated dramatically over the last decade.  After a steep 
decline between FY 2009 and FY 2011, ridership numbers increased dramatically in FY 2012 and FY 2013.  
In the last three years, however, ridership has again shown a distinct downward trend.  In FY 2019, 
DASH recorded just under 3.8 million passenger boardings, which was down roughly 2.8 percent from FY 
2017, and down 12 percent from FY 2015.   
 
The ridership decrease in FY 2019 can be largely attributed to decreasing ridership on the free King 
Street Trolley.  Annual ridership for all regular DASH routes, excluding the Trolley, was virtually identical 
to FY 2018 and down by only one percent from FY 2017.  Ridership decreases resulting from the WMATA 
Platform Improvement Project (PIP) =in May and June 2019 also negatively impacted the FY 2019 totals. 
 
In terms of daily boardings in FY 2019, DASH drew an average of 12,800 boardings on weekdays, just 
over 6,500 boardings on Saturdays, and approximately 4,500 boardings on Sundays.  This translates to 
an approximately 2.4 percent decrease in weekday boardings from FY 2018.  Average Saturday and 
Sunday boardings were also down by 7.1 percent and 5.2 percent, respectively.   

 -

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ev
en

u
e 

H
o

u
rs



 

17 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Figure 4 -2 / DASH Annual Ridership (FY 2009 - FY 2019) 
  

 
 

The recent DASH ridership decreases are part of a larger trend affecting agencies throughout the 
Washington, DC region, and across the country.  A combination of low fuel prices and the growth of 
ridesharing services like Uber and Lyft have led to reduced transit ridership across the country.  Within 
the Washington, DC area, Metrorail ridership was flat for FY 2019, however, Metrobus service in 
Northern Virginia saw a 4.7 percent decrease in average weekday boardings.  Similar decreases were 
reported by ART (-5.3%) and PRTC/Omniride (-2.1%).  Other agencies such as Fairfax Connector, Fairfax 
CUE, and Loudoun County Transit reported flat ridership for FY 2019 as compared to FY 2018.  
 
Figure 4 -3 / Average Weekday Boardings for Northern Virginia Transit Agencies (FY 2019 vs. FY 2018) 

 

 

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

 4,000,000

 4,500,000

 5,000,000

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19

A
n

n
u

al
 B

o
ar

d
in

gs



 

18 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Ridership Promotion Programs.  In an effort to attract additional ridership, DASH has initiated programs 
like the “Free Student Rides” program for high school students, the introduction of free rides for 
Metroaccess and DOT paratransit program participants, and reduced fares for senior riders who use 
their Senior SmarTrip cards during off-peak periods.    
 
The DASH “Free Student Rides” program has been particularly successful in its first two full years in 
encourage transit usage among Alexandria high school students.  In FY 2018, the first year the program 
was offered, DASH recorded approximately 1,000 student boardings on a typical weekday during the 
school year.  In FY 2019, the program ridership grew to 1,200 average weekday boardings, due in part to 
the expansion of the program to Bishop Ireton, St. Stephens & St. Agnes, and Episcopal high schools. 
 
In FY 2018, DASH also launched a program to allow free rides for DOT and MetroAccess paratransit 
cardholders.  Although the program includes both DOT and MetroAccess participants, the vast majority 
of program participants – more than 99 percent – are DOT paratransit users.  In FY 2019, DASH recorded 
approximately 2,900 DOT/MetroAccess boardings per month, which was up by 42 percent as compared 
to the previous year.  
 
Lastly, at the start of FY 2019, DASH introduced a discounted fare of $1.00 for Senior/Disabled SmarTrip 
cardholders during off-peak periods.  During the program’s first 12 months, Senior/Disabled SmarTrip 
ridership increased by 6 percent as compared to the previous year, including a 9 percent increase in off-
peak boardings.  The biggest increase (19 percent) occurred during weekday evenings after 6pm.       
 
4.3 / Ridership by Route 
 
At the route level, Figure 4-4 shows that while many DASH routes have declined in weekday ridership 
over the last three years, several have modest gains in FY 2019.  The AT-5, AT-6 and AT-7 each increased 
by 2 - 5 percent as compared to FY 2018.  Weekday ridership on the AT-9 showed the biggest increase 
(13 percent), which does not the more recent ridership increases on that route resulting from the I-395 
Commuter Choice improvements. The largest weekday declines in FY 2019 were on the AT-2X (-19%), 
AT-10 (-15%), and the King Street Trolley (-12%).  As noted previously, the decreasing Trolley ridership 
was the largest factor in the overall FY 2019 ridership decline and is attributed in part to decreasing 
tourism activity in Old Town. 
 
Weekend ridership has decreased on most DASH routes since FY 2017.  As shown on Figure 4-5, average 
Saturday boardings on the AT-1 and AT-9 have increased by 2 and and 10 percent, respectively since FY 
2018.   The AT-5, AT-8 and AT-10 have experienced decreases of 3 - 9 percent in FY 2019. King Street 
Trolley ridership on Saturdays was down by 12 percent from the previous year. 
 
On Sundays, overall ridership on regular DASH routes is down by roughly five percent due to decreasing 
ridership on the King Street Trolley.  As shown on Figure 4-6, Sunday ridership on all regular DASH routes 
has gone up from FY 2018 to FY 2019.  The AT-1 and AT-2 have demonstrated the largest growth with 
increase of 15 percent and 8 percent, respectively. Average Sunday boardings on the King Street Trolley 
ridership were down by almost 15 percent in FY 2019. 
 
Several external factors may have influenced the ridership numbers provided above.  First, WMATA’s 
Platform Improvement Project (PIP) led to a sharp ridership decrease in May and June 2019.  Second, an 
extended shutdown of the Federal Government that began in mid-December 2018 and lasted to late 
January 2019 also led to significantly lower ridership during that period. 



 

19 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Figure 4-4 / Average WEEKDAY Ridership by Route (FY17-FY19) 
 

 
 

Figure 4-5 / Average SATURDAY Ridership by Route (FY17-FY19) 
 

 
 

Figure 4-6 / Average SUNDAY Ridership by Route (FY17-FY19) 
 

 
 

 
 

1,534
1,408

118

670
531

58

1,381

762
615

2,589

545
394

1,894

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

AT1 AT2 AT2X AT3 AT4 AT3-4 AT5 AT6 AT7 AT8 AT9 AT10 Trolley

A
ve

ra
ge

 W
ee

kd
ay

 B
o

ar
d

in
gs

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

1534 1408

118

670 531

58

1381

762
615

2589

545
394

1,894

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

AT1 AT2 AT2X AT3 AT4 AT3-4 AT5 AT6 AT7 AT8 AT9 AT10 Trolley

A
ve

ra
ge

 W
ee

kd
ay

 B
o

ar
d

in
gs

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

470 427

48
359

813

126

2,249

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

AT1 AT2 AT3-4 AT5 AT8 AT10 Trolley

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019



 

20 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Seminary Road & Janneys Lane Ridership 
 
One of the key decisions made by the ATC Board of Directors as part of their decision to adopt the 
Alexandria Transit Vision Plan was to maintain local bus service on Seminary Road and Janneys Lane 
between Howard Street and King Street.  As a condition to this decision, the Board recommended that 
the average weekday ridership on this corridor should be monitored on an annual basis over the 
subsequent five years to ensure that the service was being sufficiently utilized to warrant its continued 
operation.  To this end, the Board identified a target increase of 20 percent for average weekday 
boardings along this segment.  The AT-2 recorded approximately 100 weekday boardings in FY 2019, so 
the ridership target of 120 average weekday boardings along the segment will be monitored in each of 
the next four Transit Development Plan documents. 
 
4.4 / Cost Efficiency 
 
Total ridership data alone only tells part of the story.  In order to determine the cost efficiency of the 
system, ridership numbers must be compared to revenue hours to determine how efficiently the system 
and its routes are operating.  This metric is typically expressed in boardings per revenue hour.  In FY 
2019, the DASH bus system drew 22.3 boardings per revenue hour.  This was a slight decrease from the 
23.4 boardings per revenue hours that were recorded in FY 2018.   
 
Route-by-route boardings per revenue hour for weekdays, Saturdays and Sundays in FY 2019 are shown 
in Figure 4-7.  Routes with the highest weekday productivity include the King Street Trolley and the AT-8.  
The least productive weekday routes are the AT2X and the AT3-4, which both draw eight boardings per 
hour or fewer.  On weekends, the AT-1, AT-8 and King Street Trolley maintain an average productivity at 
or above 15 boardings per revenue hour.  The AT-3/4 is the least productive route on weekends with 
less than five boardings per revenue hour. 

 
 

Figure 4-7 / Average Boardings per Revenue Hour by Route and Day (FY 2019) 
 

 

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

AT1 AT2 AT2X AT3 AT4 AT3-4 AT5 AT6 AT7 AT8 AT9 AT10 Trolley

Weekday Saturday Sunday



 

21 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

4.5 / Operating Ratio 
 
One other common measure of cost efficiency in transit planning is the Operating Ratio, which measures 
the percent of total operating costs that are covered by revenues, including passenger fares.  
Presumably, an efficient, well-designed transit system will generate higher ridership and greater fare 
revenues per unit cost of operating expense than a less efficient system.  Based on FY 2014 and FY 2016 
NTD data, the normal range for operating ratios is 15 to 25 percent.  For FY 2019, DASH recorded an 
operating ratio of 36.8 percent, which represented an increase from 32.2 percent in FY 2018.  The 
annual DASH operating ratios for the last five years are shown in Figure 4-8. 
 

Figure 4-8 / Annual DASH Operating Ratio (FY15 - FY19) 
 

 
 
4.6 / Service Reliability 
 
DASH is working to identify and address service reliability deficiencies that may have a negative impact 
on ridership and customer satisfaction.  Service reliability can be measured by on-time performance, 
missed trip percentage, average miles per road call and customer feedback.  It is important to note that 
service reliability is invariably tied to service frequency since the consequences of a missed trip are far 
less significant if the next bus is only 10 or 15 minutes away instead of 60 minutes away. 
 
The most common indicator for service reliability is on-time performance (OTP), which measures the 
percentage of trips that are arriving at each timepoint within five minutes of their scheduled arrival 
time.  In FY 2019, approximately 85.2 percent of all DASH trips arrived on time.  This a 3 percent increase 
from FY 2018, and it is roughly equal to the industry OTP standard of 85 percent. 
 
A chart showing FY 2019 weekday on-time performance by route is included as Figure 4-9.  The most 
reliable routes in the system are the AT-1 (88%), AT-6 (87%), AT-10 (87%) and the King Street Trolley 
(91%).  The least reliable routes are the AT-3 (79%), AT-4 (81%), AT-7 (81%) and AT-8 (80%). 
 
The most challenging time of day for on-time performance is the weekday afternoon peak period.  
Overall on-time performance during the PM peak is roughly 78 percent, compared to 85 percent for the 



 

22 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

rest of the day.  Although all routes are less reliable during the afternoon peak hour, the AT-3, AT-5, AT-
7, and AT-8 are all below 75 percent due to volatile traffic conditions on Interstate 395, the Telegraph/I-
495 interchange, and Old Town South. 
 
Service reliability is also often impacted by the performance of the DASH maintenance department, 
which is responsible for ensuring that buses are maintained in good operating shape to minimize the 
chances for breakdowns and missed trips.   In FY 2019, DASH averaged over 15,100 miles per road call, 
which was an improvement from 14,700 miles per road call in FY 2018 and well above the industry 
average (11,500 miles per road call).   The FY 2019 total missed trip percentage was 0.047 percent, 
which was a significant increase from the 0.028 percent of trips that were missed in FY 2018. 
 
 

Figure 4-9 / Weekday On-Time Performance by Route and Time Period (FY 2019) 
 

 
 

 
Another, more indirect measure of service reliability is customer feedback.  The DASH Customer Service 
Department is responsible for documenting and categorizing all calls and e-mails that are received from 
passengers.  In FY 2019, DASH received 26 valid complaints relating to schedule adherence.  This 
represented a significant decrease from the 40 similar complaints that were registered in FY 2018.  In 
total, 172 valid customer complaints were received in FY 2019 as compared to 224 valid complaints in FY 
2018.  
 
4.7 / Access & Mobility 
 
As discussed extensively in the Alexandria Transit Vision Plan, two of the most important performance 
measures for a bus system are transit access and mobility.  These metrics can measure how well a 
transit system serves the community, and the extent to which transit provides access to opportunities 
(e.g. jobs, housing, schools, shopping centers, day cares, civic centers, etc). 

50.0%

55.0%

60.0%

65.0%

70.0%

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

O
n

-T
im

e 
Pe

rf
o

rm
an

ce
 

AM Peak Midday PM Peak

OTP Industry Standard (85%)



 

23 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

In order for transit to be effective, it must be accessible to large numbers of residents, jobs and activity 
centers.  It must also be useful and convenient.  Figure 4-10 provides a summary of access to the current 
DASH bus network for all residents, non-white residents, residents in poverty, and jobs in Alexandria.  
Access is measured by the percentage of each group that are within a quarter-mile walking distance of 
transit service at 12pm on a weekday, or the baseline off-peak service.   
 
As shown below, the current DASH bus network does an exceptional job of providing access to basic 
transit for each of the groups identified below, however, the access to frequent all-day transit among 
these groups is relatively low.  This is a common theme that was identified during the Alexandria Transit 
Vision Plan process.  With the new ATV Network Plan, the percentages of each group with access to 
frequent, all-day transit will increase dramatically. 
 

Figure 4-10 – Access to Transit & High-Frequent Transit 

 
 
The second metric, mobility, can be derived from the isochrone maps that are included as Figures 4-11, 
4-12 and 4-13.  Each map assumes that a transit user – represented as a stick figure – is at a selected 
location at a certain day and time.  The colored isochrone shapes represent the area that can be reached 
from that specified location on the specified day and time using transit or walking based on an average 
trip times of five minutes (white), 10 minutes (blue), 20 minutes (teal), and 30 minutes  (red).  The trip 
time calculation accounts for both travel time, and average waiting time based on route frequencies. 
The larger the isochrone shape, the more access to locations with different types of “opportunities” 
described above.  
 
As an example, Figure 4-11 shows the mobility of a transit user in Old Town at the intersection of King 
Street and Washington Street on weekdays during the midday (12:00 PM) and the afternoon peak (5:00 
PM).  Since the service levels and frequencies are increased during the peak period, passengers as this 
location can travel further within the 30-minute window during the peak period, and the size of the 
isochrone shapes on the right side are larger.  In other words, passenger starting in Old Town could 



 

24 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

travel to Foxchase Shopping Center on Duke Street within 30 minutes during peak periods, but it would 
take 45 minutes or longer during the middle of the day.  The graphs also can be used in reverse to show 
the areas from which one can get to the location (i.e. Old Town) within 30 minutes using transit.   
 

Figure 4-11 / Mobility Comparison to/from Old Town Alexandria 

 
Figure 4-12 / Mobility Comparison to/from Southern Towers 

 
While the size of the isochrone shapes illustrate how far a passenger can travel within 30 minutes using 
transit, the number of opportunities (population, jobs, etc) within the shapes are even more important.  
This measure more accurate reflects the actual access to opportunities that transit is providing to the  
community.  For example, Figure 4-12 shows the same isochrone maps for a different location – 
Southern Towers apartments.  The first map shows the areas that can be reached within 30 minutes 
using transit at 8:00 AM on a weekday.  As shown in Table 4-1, the total area covered by the isochrones 
includes over 110,000 residents and almost 27,000 jobs.  In other words, there are 27,000 jobs that can 
be reached from Southern Towers within 30 minutes using transit on a weekday morning at 8:00 AM. 
 
With the introduction of frequency and span improvements from the new Alexandria Transit Vision Plan 
network, these access and mobility performance measurements are expected to improve dramatically. 

Figure 4-13 / Mobility Comparison to/from Arlandria 

Weekday – 5 PM Weekday – 12 PM 

Weekday – 8 AM Saturday – 12 PM 



 

25 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

 

 
 

Table 4 -1 / Existing Transit Access within 30 Minutes Using Transit 
 

 
 
 
4.9 / System Performance Summary 
 
For FY 2019, DASH has experienced a slight decrease in overall ridership that was due in large part to 
declining ridership on the King Street Trolley. Weekend ridership – in particular – has been negatively 
affected by these ridership losses on the Trolley.   
 
In terms of another key metric, service reliability, DASH performs well but tends to experience 
significantly reduced on-time performance during the weekday afternoon commute period, particularly 
on routes such as the AT-3, AT-5, AT-7 and AT-8 that must navigate through the heavy traffic from I-395 
and I-495 in and around Old Town Alexandria. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Peak Off-Peak Peak Off-Peak

Old Town 49,037 32,260 51,222 40,112

Southern Towers 110,488 65,450 40,012 26,556

Arlandria 71,218 38,200 40,394 12,650

Residents within 30 min. Jobs within 30 min.
Location

Weekday – 5 PM Sunday – 12 PM 



 

26 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

5.0 / Service & Fare Recommendations 
 
The following section provides a series of recommendations for future service improvements and fare 
adjustments.  These recommendations are based on staff analyses and guidance from the General 
Manager and ATC Board of Directors.  The recommendations are organized chronologically, beginning 
with the service and fare assumptions from the FY 2021 ATC budget request.  Service and fare 
recommendations for the rest of the six-year plan cycle (FY 2022 – FY 2026) are also included and are 
largely shaped by the Alexandria Transit Vision Plan. 
 
5.1 / Service Recommendations (FY 2021) 
 
As part of the FY 2021 budget development process, DASH is planning the following fiscally-constrained 
service level assumptions: 
 

• FY 2021 Service Levels. DASH projects that FY 2021 service levels for regular DASH routes and 
the King Street Trolley will be roughly 242,000 platform hours and 2,028,000 platform miles.  
These totals represent overall service decreases of 1.6 percent and 2.6 percent, respectively, 
from projected FY 2020 levels exclusive of the Commuter Choice and Platform Improvement 
Project service enhancements.  The total annual service provided for FY 2021, including the I-
395 Commuter Choice improvements, is estimated to be 272,000 platform hours and 2,359,000 
platform miles. 
 

• Projected Operating Ratio of 26.0% represents a significant decrease from 36.8% in FY 2019 
adopted budget.  This decrease is attributed primarily to the cost increase associated with the 
new collective bargaining agreement with the Amalgamated Transit Union Local 689. 
 

• AT-4 Route Segment Discontinued in Old Town.  DASH is proposing to eliminate the segment of 
the AT-4 route between the Braddock Road Metrorail and City Hall.  The route alignment from 
Braddock Road Metro to the Pentagon via Parkfairfax would not be changed so the majority of 
AT-4 riders will not be affected.  This change is consistent with the planned 2022 ATV Network, 
which modifies both the AT-3 and the AT-4 so that they terminate at Braddock Road Metro 
instead of continuing into Old Town.  With both the existing DASH network and the planned 
2022 ATV network, passengers will be able to transfer to other routes at Braddock Road Metro 
to complete their trip. 

 
This change will have the biggest negative impact on an estimated 15 daily riders who currently 
ride the AT-4 between Central Alexandria and Old Town through the Braddock Road Metro.  
Most riders in the area are going to or from the Metrorail station, but these “through” riders 
would now need to transfer at Braddock Road Metro to the AT-8 to complete their trips.   Both 
the AT-4 and the AT-8 operate every 20 minutes during peak periods, which should allow staff to 
modify the schedules to create relatively easy transfers that will only add 5-10 minutes to their 
total trip time.  There are 50 additional riders who use the AT-4 in Old Town, but the AT-8 
operates along the same route alignment so they will be able to use that route instead. 
 
This route change is proposed to be implemented by October 2020 and is designed to limit the 
DASH subsidy increase as part of the City of Alexandria’s budget process.  



 

27 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Figure 5-1 / Proposed AT-4 Route Change 
 



 

28 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

 

• King Street Trolley Seasonal Route Modification.  The King Street Trolley will be re-routed on 
weekends during the summer as part of the King Street Place project, which will partially shut 
down the 100 block of King Street to vehicle traffic.  The Trolley will continue to serve the 
Waterfront stop via a modified routing along North Lee Street, Cameron Street, and North 
Union Street.  No stops will be missed and the re-route will not impact service cost. 
 

• Holiday Service Plan Changes.  DASH proposes to modify its holiday operating plan so that 
DASH runs Sunday service on Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, and New Year’s Day instead of 
operating no regular service.  This change is consistent with other regional operators and will 
benefit DASH customers who still need to make bus trips on those days.   

 

• I-395 Commuter Choice Program. DASH will continue the service enhancements on the AT-1 
Plus and the AT-9 as part of the inaugural I-395 Commuter Choice program through the end of 
FY 2021.  The selected improvements are the first step towards the Alexandria Transit Vision 
Plan networks and a precursor to the future West End Transitway service. DASH will apply for 
additional service enhancements as identified through the Alexandria Transit Vision Plan for the 
FY 2022 – FY 2023 I-395 Commuter Choice project cycle. 

 

• King Street Metro Access Improvements.  The planned renovation and expansion of the existing 
King Street Metro transit center began in November 2018 and is expected to be completed by 
Spring 2020.  When completed, the new transit center will include three additional bus bays, 
improved bus circulation, enhanced pedestrian safety, and improved passenger amenities.   
 

 5.2 / Fare Recommendations (FY 2021) 
 
As part of the FY 2021 budget development process, the following fare recommendations are proposed: 
 

• Fare Changes. No changes to the base fare or DASH Pass are proposed for FY 2021.  The base 
fare will remain at $2.00 and the DASH Pass will remain at $45.00. 
 

• WMATA Pass Products.  DASH staff are in preliminary discussions with the City of Alexandria 
and regional partners to begin allowing DASH passengers to use any WMATA pass product as 
valid fare payment, in accordance with recommendations from WMATA’s Bus Transformation 
Project.  Currently, DASH accepts the 7-Day Regional Bus Pass and participates in a regional 
revenue sharing agreement that distributes funds based on pass usage.  The proposed change 
would expand this agreement to include all current and future WMATA regional passes for both 
bus and rail.  DASH anticipates that the revenue impact of this change will be minimal, and 
potentially offset by the resulting growth in ridership and revenues.   
 

• Free Student Rides.  DASH staff will continue the “Free Student Rides” program for Alexandria 
high school students for its fourth year.  DASH staff will continue to pursue fare partnerships 
with other partner organizations that will promote new ridership and/or increase revenues. 

 

• Fare-Free Days.  DASH staff will explore the possibility of operating fare-free service on selected 
days to promote public transit awareness and usage.  Eligible days could include but are not 



 

29 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

limited to holidays, election days, air quality alert days, or days in which a major service changes 
such as the new ATV network is first being implemented.   
 

• Mobile Ticketing Pilot.  The DASH Bus app was launched in Spring 2019 as a one-year pilot with 
options for contract extensions in subsequent years.  DASH staff will be evaluating the pilot in 
the spring to determine if it should be continued and what the next phase will be.  Ultimately, 
DASH envisions a mobile ticketing solution that is can be used across multiple regional 
providers, includes real-time bus arrival and trip planning information, and features electronic 
validation with onboard readers. 
 

• Convert DOT Paratransit Cards to SmarTrip Cards.  DASH is working with the City of Alexandria 

to transition DOT cards from the current paper version to a SmarTrip-enabled chip card.  

Through this effort, DOT cardholders will be able to tap their cards on the farebox of DASH 

buses which will increase operational efficiency, customer convenience, and data collection, 

while reducing the occurrence of fraud.  Since DOT cards are valid for three years, the transition 

from paper cards to SmarTrip cards is expected to take several years to complete. 

 
5.3 / Service & Fare Recommendations (FY 2022 – FY 2026) 
 
The service and fare recommendations for FY 2022 – FY 2026 will be driven almost exclusively by the 
Alexandria Transit Vision Plan, which was adopted by the DASH Board of Directors in December 2019.  
As a result, the majority of this section is devoted to a summary of the planned ATV networks.   
 
Alexandria Transit Vision Plan.   
 
Based on the recommendations of the Alexandria Transit Vision (ATV) Plan, DASH will implement the 
first phase of the plan – the Final 2022 ATV Network – at the start of FY 2022.  The full vision, which is 
reflected by the 2030 ATV Network, will be implemented between FY 2023 and FY 2030 based on 
funding availability.  Additional information on the Alexandria Transit Vision Plan project, process, 
outcomes, impacts to specific routes/areas, and final report can be found at the project website: 
www.dashbus.com/transitvision. 
 
2022 Alexandria Transit Vision Plan 
 
The 2022 ATV Network establishes the structure of the new more ridership-oriented bus network while 
providing frequent, all-day bus service across major portions of the City of Alexandria.  Figures 5-2 and 
5-3 show the new network during peak and midday time periods, respectively, while Figure 5-4 shows 
the service frequencies and hours of operations for all DASH and WMATA routes.   
 
It should be noted that DASH and WMATA staff are still coordinating to determine which routes will be 
operated by which provider, and the route names with the “N” prefix are likely subject to change as part 
of a systemwide rebranding effort that will coincide with the introduction of the new network. 
 
The 2022 ATV Network assumes the equivalent of an 8 percent increase in service hours for DASH and 
continued funding from the I-395 Commuter Choice program for additional service in western and 
northern Alexandria. The 2022 network would be highlighted by a network of high-frequency bus routes 
operating every 15 minutes or better, all-day seven days per week across most of the city. 

http://www.dashbus.com/transitvision


 

30 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Specific highlights of the 2022 ATV Network include: 
 

• Old Town Circulator.  The new “OTC” service in Old Town operates every 5-8 minutes between 
the King Street Metro and Braddock Road Metro via King Street, North Fairfax Street and the 
Montgomery/Madison Street corridor.  This extremely high-frequency service is created by 
consolidating Old Town service along one primary route and combining three new east-west 
routes that connect Old Town to the West End via Eisenhower Avenue (“N1”), Duke Street 
(“N3”) and King Street (“N4”).  Passengers traveling from the West End into Old Town would not 
need to transfer at King Street Metro to continue into Old Town.  The OTC would effectively 
replace and improve upon segments of existing Old Town routes such as the AT-2, AT-5, AT-7 
and AT-8. 
 

• West End.  Major service improvements in the West End provide simple, frequent, all-day 
connections between the Van Dorn Metro, Landmark Mall, Mark Center, Shirlington and the 
Pentagon.  The new “N7” route replaces portions of existing DASH and WMATA routes (AT-1, 
AT-2, 7A, 7F).  The new “N27” route replaces the existing Metrobus 7W route, and provides 
additional peak service between the West End and the Pentagon. 
 

• King Street.  Existing DASH AT-5 and AT-6 service along King Street will be consolidated as the 
new “N4” route which operates every 10-15 minutes all day, seven days per week.  The new 
route will provide a frequent connection from Old Town to NVCC-Alexandria, and passengers 
traveling from the Beauregard Street corridor to Old Town will be able to transfer from the “N7” 
to the “N4” – both of which run every 15 minutes or better, all-day, seven days a week –  to 
complete their trip. 
 

• Potomac Yard.  The new Potomac Yard Metrorail Station is scheduled to open in 2022 and the 
new ATV network provides frequent, all-day connections from Shirlington and Arlandria with the 
new “N10”/”N11” route pair, from Del Ray with the  new“N5” and from Old Town with the new 
“N6”.  If the opening of the Potomac Yard Metro is delayed, the “N6” would be implemented as 
shown, but would connect to the Braddock Road Metro until rail service begins to the Potomac 
Yard Metro. 

 

• Pentagon.  Existing AT-3 and AT-4 commuter service to the Pentagon from Parkfairfax and North 
Ridge will be maintained, as shown by the “N23” and “N24” routes on Figure 5-2.  Additional all-
day service from the West End to the Pentagon would be provided by the new “N7” route. 

 

• Seminary Hill.   Existing local service from Mark Center to King Street Metro via Seminary Road 
and Janneys Lane will be maintained on weekdays as shown by the new “N12” route in the Final 
2022 ATV recommendations, however, weekend service between Howard Street and King Street 
will be discontinued. 
 

• King Street Trolley.  In the 2022 ATV Network, the King Street Trolley features an extension 
from the King Street Metro to the Eisenhower Metro via Carlyle and Eisenhower East.  This 
extension will provide an important connection between Old Town and the most densely-
developed part of the city.  Additional Trolley scenarios were identified in the ATV Final Report 
which could better integrate the Trolley into the rest of the Old Town bus network, however, 
they would likely need to include changes to fare policy and input from City Council. 



 

31 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Figure 5-2 / 2022 Alexandria Transit Vision Network – Peak Service 

 



 

32 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Figure 5-3 / 2022 Alexandria Transit Vision Network – Off-Peak Service 

 
 



 

33 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Figure 5-4 / 2022 Alexandria Transit Vision Network – Frequency Table 

 
 
 



 

34 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

 
The 2022 ATV Plan will provide the following benefits for DASH customers and the city as a whole: 
 

• Establishment of a citywide network of high-frequency bus routes running every 15 minutes or 
better, all day, seven days per week in West End, Arlandria, Potomac Yard and Old Town. 

• Access to frequent, all-day transit for nearly 100,000 city residents (vs. 40,000 today). 

• 73% of low-income residents will have access to frequent, all-day transit (vs. 29% today). 

• 70% of minority residents will have access to frequent, all-day transit (vs. 22% today). 

• 62% of seniors will have access to frequent, all-day transit (vs. 23% today). 

• Maintains bus service coverage to the extent that 99.5 percent of existing DASH and WMATA 
boardings will still be within 1/8 mile of a bus stop under the 2022 ATV Network. 

• Significant expansion of evening and weekend service, including a 50% increase in weekend 
service that will benefit non-traditional commuters and off-peak transit users. 

 
For additional details on the 2022 and 2030 ATV networks, please visit www.dashbus.com/transitvision. 
 
2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Plan 
 
The 2030 ATV Network represents the ultimate vision for the new ridership-oriented bus network while 
providing frequent, all-day bus service across most of the city.  Many of the routes in the 2030 network 
are similar to the routes from the 2022 network, but with additional frequency improvements.  Figures 
5-5 and 5-6 show the new 2030 network during peak and midday time periods, respectively, while 
Figure 5-7 shows the service frequencies and hours of operations for all DASH and WMATA routes.   
 
The 2030 ATV Network assumes the equivalent of a 20 percent increase in service hours for both DASH 
and WMATA. The final 2030 network would be highlighted by an extensive network of high-frequency 
bus routes operating every 15 minutes or better, all-day seven days per week that would allow transit 
users to move easily across the city at all times. 
 
The 2030 ATV Network was designed to be implemented by 2030, however, some of the improvements 
could be introduced during the latter part of the FY 2022 – FY 2026 period covered by this TDP if funding 
is available.  One major component of the 2030 ATV Network that may be implemented earlier than 
2030 is the West End Transitway.  The capital improvements for the West End Transitway could be 
completed as early as 2025, in which case, the new “N9” West End Transitway route could be 
implemented at time, as well as the the corresponding changes to the “N8”, “N10” and “N11” routes. 
 
The 2030 ATV Plan will provide the following major benefits: 
 

• Expansion of the citywide network of frequent, all-day bus service, seven days per week. 

• Access to frequent, all-day transit for nearly 120,000 city residents (vs. 40,000 today). 

• 91% of low-income residents will have access to frequent, all-day transit (vs. 29% today). 

• 89% of minority residents will have access to frequent, all-day transit (vs. 22% today). 

• 78% of seniors will have access to frequent, all-day transit (vs. 23% today). 

• Maintains bus service coverage to the extent that 99.5 percent of existing DASH and WMATA 
boardings will still be within 1/8 mile of a bus stop under the 2022 ATV Network. 

• Significant expansion of evening and weekend service, including a 50% increase in weekend 
service that will benefit non-traditional commuters and off-peak transit users. 

http://www.dashbus.com/transitvision


 

35 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Figure 5-5 / 2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Network – Peak Service 

 



 

36 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Figure 5-6 / 2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Network – Midday Service 

 



 

37 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Figure 5-7 / 2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Network – Frequency Table 

 
 

 



 

38 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Though this plan does not provide specific recommendations about the phasing of the 2030 ATV 
network improvements, there are two main improvements from the final network that staff has 
identified for early implementation, depending on funding availability: 
 

1. Eisenhower Avenue (“N1”) peak service improvements.   The 2030 ATV network includes 15-
minute frequency between the Van Dorn Metro and the King Street Metro during weekday peak 
periods.  This improvement was initially included in the 2022 ATV Plan, but it was reduced to 30-
minute service due to budget constraints.  The Eisenhower Avenue corridor includes some of 
the densest portions of the city and several additional large developments will be added in the 
next few years.   Staff recommends that this improvement to peak frequency on the “N1” route 
should be implemented as quickly as possible, and no later than FY 2024. 

 
2. Duke Street (“N3”) off-peak service improvements.  Duke Street is one of the most productive 

transit corridors in the City of Alexandria, and for that reason, it has been identified by the city 
as a future BRT corridor.  Although the current AT-8 route (and the future “N3”) routes provide 
10-minute peak service along the corridor, the service during off-peak periods only runs every 
30 minutes.  Under the 2030 ATV network, off-peak service along the Duke Street corridor will 
be improved to every 15 minutes.  Due to the strong transit demand along this corridor, staff 
recommends that the improvement of “N3” off-peak service from every 30 minutes to every 15 
minutes should be another early service improvement from the 2030 ATV Plan. 

 
The following additional service- and fare-related actions are planned for FY 2022 – FY 2026: 

 

• Potomac Yard Metro Station.  WMATA is planning to construct a new in-fill Metrorail Station at 
Potomac Yard, between the existing Braddock Road and National Airport Metro Stations.  The 
station will be constructed just west of the intersection of Potomac Avenue and East Glebe 
Road, with an adjacent bus transit center for DASH, WMATA and Metroway buses.  Based on the 
expected opening date of early 2022, DASH plans to identify any corresponding service changes 
in this area during the Alexandria Transit Vision Plan process. 

 

• West End Transitway.  The City of Alexandria is planning to build the West End Transitway, a 
high-capacity BRT service that would operate along the I-395 corridor between Alexandria and 
the Pentagon.  The original route began at the Van Dorn Metro with stops at Landmark, Mark 
Center, Southern Towers and Shirlington Transit Center before reaching the Pentagon.  
Although a specific transit provider has not been identified for this service, DASH is expected to 
be considered due to its other nearby services and cost efficiency.  Operating funds for this 
service have not yet been identified, but the I-395 Commuter Choice program and other state 
and regional funding sources will be actively pursued. 
 

• Free Transfers to/from Metrorail.  DASH is working with WMATA and City staff on a potential 
fare policy change to allow free transfers to/from Metrorail in the near future.  Metrorail 
passengers transferring to a DASH bus would ride DASH for free, while DASH passengers 
transferring to Metrorail would receive a discount equal to the amount of their DASH fare 
($2.00).  Under current DASH policy, the transfer discount to/from Metrorail is only $0.50, while 
transfers to Metrobus are free.  Note that WMATA has proposed free transfers between 
Metrorail and Metrobus as part of its FY 2021 budget, but the policy does not yet apply to DASH. 

 

• Future Fare Changes.  No future changes to base fare or DASH Pass are anticipated at this time.  



 

39 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

6.0 / DASH Capital Budget Program 
 
This section outlines the capital improvements that are planned to support the long-term viability and 
growth of the DASH bus system.  The primary source of capital funding for DASH is the City of 
Alexandria’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP), however, ATC capital improvements are also funded 
by other state and regional sources, such as the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transit (VDRPT) 
and the Northern Virginia Transportation Authority (NVTA). 
 
6.1 / FY 2021 – FY 2030 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)  
 
DASH relies upon capital funding from the City of Alexandria and regional funds from NVTA to pay for 
replacement buses, facility improvements, technology systems and a wide range of other capital 
projects.  The City of Alexandria’s Capital Improvement Program covers a ten-year period and operates 
on a two-year cycle.  Based on the proposed FY 2021 – FY 2030 CIP, the city has allocated a total of 
$107.7 million for five different ATC capital projects.  These projects include bus replacements, 
powertrain and battery pack replacements, facility and fleet expansion, and investments in new 
technology for fare collection and scheduling software. 
 
Based on recent guidance from DASH management and City staff, DASH made several modifications to 
its capital funding requests for FY 2021.  Table 6-1 depicts a summary of the approved FY 2021 CIP 
project funding requests and the major changes.   
 
6.2 / Fleet Replacement Plan 
 
As shown in Table 6-2, DASH has purchased 13 replacement buses in the last 12 months.  With the 
planned purchase of six additional replacement buses in FY 2020 through the VW Mitigation Trust 
program described below, DASH will be able to retire the last of its old diesel buses, which are now 
operating beyond their useful 12-year life cycle. 
 
A detailed summary of the current Fleet Replacement Plan is included in Table 6-2.  This table shows the 
proposed replacement schedule for each of the nine active sub-fleets of buses, based on a useful life 
cycle of 12 years.  In order to maintain a State of Good Repair and ensure that service is provided in a 
safe and reliable manner, DASH must replace all buses that are more than 12 years old.  Any buses that 
are replaced within the yellow portion of the table are buses that are being kept in service beyond their 
useful life, which represents a failure to maintain State of Good Repair.  
 
As part of the recent switch from hybrid to clean diesel vehicles, the ATC Board of Directors and city 
leadership have expressed a strong desire to transition the fleet towards electric or zero-emission buses 
over the next 5-10 years.  To this end, DASH has been awarded state funding to purchase six electric 
buses, which will replace the last six of the older diesel buses.  The funding for this purchase came 
through the state’s VW Mitigation Trust program and covered the cost differential between clean diesel 
and electric buses as well as charging equipment.  A gradual transition to electric buses is outlined in the 
fleet replacement plan shown in Table 6-2. Additional information on DASH Zero-Emission Bus fleet 
planning is in included in Section 6.5.  



 

40 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Table 6-1 / FY 2021 – FY 2030 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Summary 
 

 
 

Previous Updated Net Change Previous Updated Net Change

1

Bus Fleet Replacement. DASH is responsible for the planning, procurement, purchase, testing, acceptance 

and maintenance of its active bus fleet.  This program provides funding for the purchase of replacement 

transit buses that enable DASH to operate fixed-route bus service throughout the City of Alexandria.  

DASH will be working with City staff and other stakeholders to coordinate the procurement, purchase and 

delivery of the replacement buses that are funded by this project.

$2,800,000 $0 ($2,800,000) $20,904,000 $80,177,200 $59,273,200 

2

DASH Hybrid Battery & Powertrain Replacement. This project funds repair or replacement of any or all 

components of the hybrid powertrain including battery packs, the dual-power inverter module (DPIM), 

transmission, or diesel engine.  Experience suggests that proactive replacement of battery packs which 

are showing no defects is unnecessary (DASH has yet to experience a battery failure in eight years of 

hybrid operation).  Repair or replacement will be made on an as-needed basis to conserve resources for 

actual failures.

$350,000 $0 ($350,000) $4,950,000 $2,390,800 ($2,559,200)

3

DASH Fleet & Facility Expansion. The current DASH Facility has reached its maximum bus capacity and 

cannot accomodate future fleet expansion. DASH has secured funding from multiple state and regional 

sources for a staged implementation of expanded bus storage capacity, which will be integrated with 

facility and utility upgrades to support a zero-emission subfleet. The City’s temporary parking 

arrangement for its overflow impound lot, currently housed on the adjacent DASH bus expansion land, 

will ultimately need to be relocated. This project also includes the purchase of 14 new buses, which are 

intended to be used to enhance service in high development areas such as Potomac Yard and the Van 

Dorn Corridor.  At least eight of the new buses will be zero-emission buses.

$15,639,161 $3,504,000 ($12,135,161) $23,067,161 $23,134,000 $66,839 

4

DASH Electronic Fare Payment. This project will provide for purchase of new farebox hardware and the 

implementation of new electronic fare payment technologies for the DASH bus fleet that will allow DASH 

to enhance the usefulness of its mobile ticketing app.  This will include required upgrades to the 

hardware which supports the SmarTrip card-based payment system, designed and managed by WMATA 

and its vendors.  It will also include electronic validation hardware for the DASH Bus mobile fare payment 

app or a future regional mobile app (including a potential WMATA app) or transition to a regionwide 

mobile ticketing platform.

$750,000 $750,000 $0 $1,200,000 $750,000 ($450,000)

5

DASH Technology. This project funds future technology initiatives (FY23-FY24) that allow DASH to 

incorporate new innovations into their day-to-day operations to improve ridership, cost efficiency and 

customer satisfaction. Such technologies include scheduling software upgrades, onboard equipment (real-

time infotainment screens, WiFi, phone charging ports, etc), facility security technology upgrades, service 

planning analysis software tools, enhanced onboard video monitoring systems, advanced bus 

maintenance diagnostic systems, or other elements to improve operations and customer experience.  

$0 $0 $0 $855,745 $855,745 $0 

TOTALS $19,539,161 $4,254,000 ($15,285,161) $50,976,906 $107,307,745 $56,330,839

FY 2021 Requests FY 2021-2030 Request Totals
Project DescriptionItem



 

41 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

6.3 / Fleet Expansion 
 
In order to maintain appropriate urban service levels for the City of Alexandria, increase service 
frequency on productive existing routes, add new service in developing areas, and achieve an industry-
standard spare ratio, DASH must periodically increase its active bus fleet size.  The current fleet size is 99 
vehicles.  With a peak pull-out requirement of 81 buses, DASH has recently been able to increase its 
spare ratio to 22 percent, which is just above the industry standard of 20 percent. 
 
DASH is planning the following fleet expansions over the next few years: 
 

• FY 2018-2023 NVTA Six Year Plan Funding.  In 2018, DASH was awarded $11.9 million to be 
used for facility upgrades and for the purchase of eight zero-emission buses.  These eight 
expansion buses are expected to be delivered by FY 2022. 

 

• FY 2021 Smart Scale Funding. DASH secured roughly $11.1 million in state DRPT funding 
through the Smart Scale program.  Most of the funding for this project will be used towards the 
facility expansion project described in Section 6.6, but the funds will also cover the purchase of 
six clean diesel expansion buses to be used towards improved DASH bus service in major 
development corridors throughout the city.  Though these buses were initially scoped as hybrid 
buses, DASH has since received approval from DRPT to purchase clean diesel buses instead due 
to ongoing reliability issues with hybrid-electric buses.  These six expansion buses are scheduled 
for FY 2023 delivery. 
 

• FY 2023 Smart Scale Funding.  DASH was also able to secure $12 million in additional Smart 
Scale funding for the purchase of 12 additional zero-emission expansion buses.  These buses are 
scheduled for purchase in FY 2024 and delivery by FY 2025 
 

Based on these planned expansions, DASH will be increasing its active fleet size from 99 buses to roughly 
120 buses over the next five years.  The corresponding facility expansion that is needed to 
accommodate the growing DASH bus fleet is summarized in Section 6.6. 
 
 6.4 / Hybrid Battery Pack & Powertrain Replacements 
 
Nearly two-thirds of the DASH active bus fleet is comprised of hybrid-propulsion buses.  DASH has 
identified a need for hybrid powertrain replacements and engine rebuilds. As shown in Table 6-1, DASH 
is requesting nearly $2.4 million in CIP funds for hybrid powertrain repair and replacement.  For FY 2020, 
DASH was awarded $900,000 to complete necessary repair and replacements and that funding will be 
enough to cover the necessary work for FY 2021 as well. Therefore, no additional CIP funds have been 
requested for this project in FY 2021. 
 



 

42 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

Table 6-2 / Fleet Replacement Schedule. 
 

 
 
 

Note:  Dashed line indicates the point at which each subfleet will reach the end of its useful life cycle (12 years).  Buses must be replaced before the end of 
their useful life cycle in order to maintain State of Good Repair (SGR) status. Numbers in yellow cells are representative of buses that will be kept beyond the 

end of their useful life cycle.  
 
 
 
 

Funding Year FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30

Delivery Year FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31

2002 Neoplan Artics (PIP) Diesel 14 6

2011 Gilligs Hybrid 10 10

2011 Gilligs (Trolley) Hybrid 5 5

2012 Gilligs Hybrid 10 10

2014 Gilligs Hybrid 7 7

2015 Gilligs Hybrid 13 13

2015 Gillig (Trolley) Hybrid 1 1

2017 Gilligs Hybrid 6 6

2018 Gilligs Clean Diesel 14 14

2019 New Flyers (13) Clean Diesel 13

2019 New Flyers (8) Clean Diesel 8

2020 Electric Buses (VW) Electric 6

Total Retirements 6 0 15 10 0 7 14 0 6 14

Replacement Buses (Clean Diesel) 0 0 10 5 0 0 0 0 0 0

Replacement Buses (Electric) 0 0 5 5 0 7 14 0 6 14

Total Replacement Buses 0 0 15 10 0 7 14 0 6 14

Expansion Buses (Clean 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Expansion Buses (Electric) 8 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expansion Buses 8 6 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0

Type Quantity



 

43 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

6.5 / Electric Bus Program 
 
In the last two years, DASH has taken great strides towards transitioning to electric buses as a 
sustainable, long-term solution for its fleet replacement needs.  This effort is well-aligned with the City’s 
2008 Transportation Plan and Eco-City Alexandria, which both seek to improve quality of life and 
sustainable transportation options.  Electrification efforts to date have included the following: 
 

• DASH management has held a continued dialogue with city staff, city advisory boards, local 
utility companies, electric bus manufacturers, and partner transit agencies that have either 
already purchased electric buses or are considering doing so.  

 

• Members of the DASH executive leadership team have toured the New Flyer electric bus 
manufacturing facility in Aniston, Alabama and attended the Zero Emission Bus Conference in 
September 2018 in Los Angeles, California to learn more about how the buses are built and how 
the technology works;  

 

• DASH staff have arranged for multiple electric bus demonstrations with leading electric bus 
manufacturers, whereby DASH is loaned an electric bus for a limited period of time so that it can 
be tested in revenue service and displayed at public events for community feedback;  

 

• Based on these demonstrations, DASH has been able to collect and analyze a wealth of 
telemetric bus performance data to help determine how effectively electric buses could be used 
to meet current operational needs;  
 

• DASH was awarded funding for six electric buses through the state’s Volkswagen Mitigation 
Trust program.  The funds will cover the cost differential of purchasing six electric buses and 
charging equipment.  These six buses are scheduled for delivery by late 2020 and will allow 
DASH to evaluate the performance of electric buses in daily revenue service.  Facility upgrades 
to support the first six electric buses will be completed by Summer 2020 and are funded by 
the NVTA 70% grant.  

 

• DASH has modified its most recent Capital Improvement Program (CIP) funding requests to 
the City of Alexandria to include funding for electric replacement buses as early as FY 2023.  
The request assumes that the electric bus purchases would increase each year until FY 2026, 
at which point all DASH replacement buses would be electric buses;  

 

• DASH has been awarded multiple regional and state grant funding opportunities through 
VDOT (SmartScale) and NVTA (70% Funds) that will help cover the cost of facility expansions, 
upgrades, infrastructure improvements, and additional electric buses, bus chargers, and 
maintenance equipment over the next 3-5 years;  

 

• DASH recently worked with the Center for Transportation and the Environment (CTE) to 
complete a Zero-Emission Bus Feasibility Review that determined that DASH and the City of 
Alexandria were well-suited for electric bus technology; and 
 

• In 2020, DASH will be working with another consultant to prepare a Zero-Emission Fleet 
Implementation Plan to set a course for electrification over the next 5-10 years. 



 

44 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

6.6 / DASH Facility Expansion  
 
As part of the $11 million DRPT SmartScale project mentioned above, DASH has secured funding to 
expand its existing garage facility to increase vehicle capacity from roughly 90 buses to 135 buses to 
meet anticipated service demand in the coming decades.  The existing William B. Hurd Transit Facility 
was opened in 2009 but has since reached its maximum bus capacity.   
 
In preparation for future expansion, the City of Alexandria secured the rights to the parcel of land 
immediately west of the existing DASH facility.  This parcel, which is currently occupied by a temporary 
impound lot, will be regraded and integrated into the existing facility.  Though the design of the facility 
expansion has not been determined, it will likely house the future electric bus fleet and charging 
infrastructure.  Construction is scheduled to begin as early as FY 2022, and the new expanded facility 
would likely open by FY 2024.   
 
6.7 / Technology Improvements  
 
In recent years, DASH has placed an emphasis on leveraging new technologies to improve the customer 
experience, enhance safety, and help DASH to run more efficiently.  Recent projects have included 
Transit Signal Prioritization (TSP), Smartyard, Real-Time info displays, Mobileye Pedestrian Detection 
Systems, TMS Daily Operations, Disruption Management, and MobileCAD. 
 

• Automated Passenger Counters.  DASH was awarded $200,000 in FY 2019 to retrofit its current 
fleet with more accurate optical APC equipment and is preparing to publish a solicitation for the 
work. With these installations, nearly 100% of the DASH fleet will be equipped with optical APC’s 
and much more detailed ridership data will be available for service planning decision-making 
and NTD reporting.  The project is scheduled for completion by mid-2020. 

 

• Scheduling Software.  DASH has identified a major need for new, upgraded scheduling 
software.  The current system that we are using is designed for smaller agencies with less 
complexity to their route networks and labor rules.  With the launch of the new Alexandria 
Transit Vision (ATV) Network in 2021 and the more complex labor rules from the new Collective 
Bargaining Agreement, DASH needs a more advanced software solution that is easier to use and 
more reliable.  Although CIP funding for scheduling software is included in FY 2023, DASH and 
City staff have worked together to identify capital funding that will be available in 2020 to 
address this immediate need. 

 

• Real-Time Information Enhancements.  DASH continues its work to provide comprehensive, 
accurate real-time bus information to all customers.  Some of these efforts include:   

 
o DASH recently introduced a real-time GTFS feed that provides more accurate 

information about real-time bus locations for third-party platforms. Real-time GTFS is 
quickly replacing proprietary APIs (like DASH’s old real-time feed) as the preferred 
source of data for programmers.    
 

o DASH is in the process of making real-time information available to customers via text 
message (SMS) and telephone (IVR).  Customers will be able to provide their Stop ID 
number and receive real-time updates about when the next buses will arrive.  

 



 

45 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

o DASH is working on an upgraded version of its BusTracker, which will be available on the 
DASH website by mid-2020.  The new version will be more user-friendly, mobile-
compatible, and include better route and stop information.  DASH is currently 
conducting focus groups with riders to better understand how the existing Bus Tracker 
could be improved.   

 
o DASH real-time information has been integrated into WMATA’s BusETA platform. 

 
o DASH has also submitted an FY 2021 grant to DRPT for an “Enhanced Real-Time 

Predictions” project that will improve the accuracy of real-time arrival predictions by 
incorporating traffic sensor data, and preceding bus trips on the same route pattern.  
This will be particularly beneficial during major service disruptions when real-time 
arrival estimates become far less accurate. 

 
o DASH is also wrapping up a validation of its real-time systems. Stating August 2019, staff 

have collected almost 500 samples of real-time accuracy by going to bus stops and 
recording what real-time arrivals predicted versus when the bus actually showed up to 
the stop. Staff recorded predictions from both BusTime (the legacy DASH Tracker) and 
the new bus Tracker, as well as from the Transit App and digital signage at stops.  

 
o Together, DASH and Metro installed close to 30 digital bus arrival signs across 

Alexandria in 2019. These include both solar-powered signs and large, LCD kiosks at the 
Mark Center. DASH is expanding the real-time sign program in 2020, with 25 more signs 
slated for installation in the first half of 2020. In addition, DASH is placing a double-sided 
LCD kiosk at King Street Metro once the bus loop reopens.  

 

• TransTrack.  TransTrack is a tool that DASH uses across many different departments to measure 
system performance, track customer feedback, and maintain important organizational data.  In 
2020, DASH is expanding its usage of TransTrack so that it is better integrated with the 
Operations Department, and to monitor several key performance indicators (KPI’s).  This will be 
completed by Spring 2020 via several product upgrades. 

 

• Fleetio.  DASH Maintenance staff are implementing a new fleet maintenance software program 
that will streamline current maintenance work orders, parts inventory, and fleet condition 
monitoring processes. 

 

• Fareboxes.  DASH is working with WMATA and other regional partners on several efforts to 
modernize regional bus farebox equipment.  In 2020, this includes the purchase of 20 new driver 
control units (DCU) tablets, which allow bus operators to record passenger boardings with a new 
touch-screen interface.  DASH is also participating in other longer-term projects to modernize 
the current farebox and move towards mobile ticketing and other off-board payment solutions. 

 

• Multidoor Boarding Study.  DASH has applied for a FY 2021 DRPT Technical Assistance grant for 
a Multidoor Boarding Study that would explore the feasibility of multidoor boarding on selected 
DASH routes.  Multidoor boarding and/or off-board fare payment can greatly reduce dwell times 
and overall travel times in busy transit corridors.  DASH anticipates that the study will examine 
both mobile and onboard technologies that can support this objective. 
 



 

46 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

• Website Improvements. DASH is currently working with a local software developer to create 
two new products for customers using the DASH website - an interactive system map and HTML 
schedules. The interactive map allows customers to view DASH’s system map imposed on a 
Google Maps base layer. Customers can zoom in and out, turn routes on and off, center to their 
location, and click individual stops to get both scheduled and real-time information. The HTML 
schedules simply put DASH’s existing schedules into a mobile-compatible format. Both 
improvements are geared toward new customers who are trying to learn about transit near 
them. 
 

• IVN-5 Migration: DASH is beginning its migration to the next generation of the Clever Devices 
Intelligent Vehicle Network (IVN) CAD/AVL system. No buses will be retrofitted, but starting with 
the summer 2020 bus order, all DASH buses will come equipped with the new IVN-5 computer 
instead of the current IVN-4, which Clever expects to stop supporting over the next 5-10 years. 
Making this change now allows DASH to switch to IVN-5 units gradually as buses are replaced 
and avoids purchasing functionally obsolete technology.  

 
6.8 / Other Capital Outlay Items 
 
The FY 2020 ATC proposed operating budget also includes capital outlay funding for regular equipment 
replacement.  This funding will be used for the replacement and repair of items such as computers, 
network equipment, building security and surveillance systems, maintenance equipment, and support 
vehicles. 



 

47 | FY2021 – FY2026 ATC Transit Development Plan (Final) 
 

7.0 / Public Outreach 
 
In support of the FY 2021 Transit Development Plan, DASH staff will be conducing extensive public 
outreach to raise community awareness about the plan and to solicit feedback.  A summary of the 
planned outreach is included below: 
 

• Two (2) Public Meetings/Hearings 
  

o TDP Community Meeting 
Tuesday, March 31, 2020, 6:00 – 8:00 PM  
George Washington Middle School – Library 
1005 Mount Vernon Avenue 
Alexandria, VA 22031 
 

o TDP Public Hearing 
Wednesday, April 9, 2020, 5:30 PM*  
City Hall – Council Workroom (2nd floor) 
301 King St. 
Alexandria, VA 22314 
 
*Public hearing to be held at the start of regularly scheduled meeting of ATC (DASH) 
Board of Directors. 

 

• Live, interactive video stream of community meetings available online. 

• Multiple “pop-up” events at transit centers and onboard buses. 

• Onboard posters/flyers (English/Spanish) 

• Onboard announcements. 

• Website Information (News/Events) 

• Multiple e-mail blasts to DASH E-mail List 

• Social Media Engagement 

• Zebra Press Online/Print Ads 

• Information Distributed to Ops Supervisors + Drivers 
 
In the final TDP that is presented to the Board of Directors, this section will be updated with a summary 
of the outreach that was conducted and the feedback that was received from the community. 



FY 2021 – FY 2026 ATC
Transit Development Plan

ATC Board of Directors Meeting
March 11, 2020



TDP OVERVIEW & PURPOSE
 What is the purpose of the TDP?

 Service Evaluation

 Planning/Budget Roadmap

 What does the TDP include?

 Performance Summary

 Service Changes

 Fare Changes

 Capital/Fleet Planning

 Covers 6-Year Period



PROPOSED FY 2021 SERVICE CHANGES

 Overall FY21 service levels to remain 
flat as compared to FY20 levels.

 AT-4 segment from Braddock Road 
Metro to City Hall proposed to be 
eliminated.

 DASH to begin operating Sunday 
service on Thanksgiving, Christmas, 
New Years Day.

 ATV network to be launched at the 
start of FY22.





 No fare changes proposed
 Base fare to remain at $2.00

 DASH Pass to remain at $45.00.

 WMATA-DASH Pass Products

 DASH Bus App Mobile Ticketing Pilot 
to be extended through end of 2020

 Potential Fare-Free Days
 Election Day

 Air Quality Alert Days

 ATV Network Launch

PROPOSED FARE CHANGES



 14 New Buses in FY 2020 – FY 2021 

 8 Clean Diesel Expansion Buses 

 6 Electric Buses (VW Mitigation Trust)

 Electric Buses

 Feasibility Review/Implementation Plan

 Updated CIP request w/Electrification

 NVTA & Smart Scale Projects 

 DASH Facility & Fleet Expansion

 Other Capital/Technology Projects

DASH CAPITAL PROGRAM



FY 2021 TDP TIMELINE
 Fall/Winter 2019 / Staff develops preliminary recommendations

 March 2020 / Final Draft TDP released for public input

 April 2020 / Final TDP Public Hearing (April 8, 2020)

 June 2020 / Board Adoption of Final FY 2021 TDP and Budget

 July 1, 2020 / Start of FY 2021

 October 2020 / Proposed Implementation of AT-4 Route Change

NOTE: ATV Network launch is planned for July 2021 (FY 2022)



COMMUNITY OUTREACH
 Public Meetings/Hearings:

 City Council FY21 Budget Hearing
Monday, March 9 / 5:30 PM
Alexandria City Hall 
301 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314

 Tuesday, March 31 / 6:00 – 8:00 PM 
George Washington Middle School (AT-4)
1005 Mount Vernon Ave, Alexandria VA 22301

 Wednesday, April 10 / 5:30 PM*
Alexandria City Hall (Old Town)
301 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314

Meeting to be streamed via interactive Facebook LIVE

Public Hearing to be held at the beginning of the regularly-
scheduled ATC (DASH) Board of Directors Meeting.

*



COMMUNITY OUTREACH
 Other Ways to Get Info & Provide Feedback:

 DASH Website – www.dashbus.com
 Facebook – www.facebook.com/dashbus
 Twitter - @dashbus
 Telephone – 703.746.DASH (3274)
 Email - dashbus@alexandriava.gov

 Community Input Deadline - Wednesday, April 8

http://www.dashbus.com/
http://www.facebook.com/dashbus
mailto:dashbus@alexandriava.gov


QUESTIONS/DISCUSSION

Martin Barna
DASH Planning & Scheduling

martin.barna@alexandriava.gov
www.dashbus.com

http://www.dashbus.com/

	Meeting Agenda
	Agenda Item #2 – Consideration of Meeting Minutes Approval
	Agenda Item #3 – Reports, Updates and Other Business Item
	#3a – Chairman’s Report
	Item #3b –T&ES Directors Report
	Agenda Item #5 - Financial Report
	Agenda Item #6a – DASH Electric Bus Program Presentation

	Agenda Item #6b – Consideration of a Resolution for Grant Application for enhancements to DASH     Real-Time Bus Predictions System
	Agenda Item #7 – Next Meeting Date & Adjournment
	At this juncture a motion was made to enter Executive Session for the Purpose of Discussing Legal and Personnel Matters, pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A1) of the Code of Virginia.
	 Motion to enter Executive Session was made by Kerry Donley and seconded by Richard Lawrence. The Motion was carried unanimously.
	 Upon conclusion of the session, a motion to exit executive session by Kerry Donley and seconded by Richard Lawrence. The Motion was carried unanimously.
	 A motion to certify that the items discussed in Executive Session were in compliance with Section 2.2-3711 (A1) of the Code of Virginia was offered by Kerry Donley and seconded by Richard Lawrence.
	 Motion to adjourn the meeting by Kerry Donley and seconded by Richard Lawrence. The motion was carried unanimously.
	4b Summary: Performance Report
	(System-Wide Ridership)
	4b Summary: Performance Report
	(Free Student Rides Program Ridership)
	4b Summary: Performance Report
	(DOT Program Boarding by Month)
	4b Summary: Performance Report
	(Mobile App Boarding’s/Performance)
	4b Summary: Performance Report
	(Quarterly Ridership Detail Report)
	Stephanie Salzone, Safety & Security Manager for DASH has been appointed by the General Manager as the lead for the agency response to the Coronavirus threat and mitigation strategies. She will provide the Board a detailed oral update on actions taken...


